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Report Of Executive Chairman

In 2010, the world financial crisis still remains and causes significant impact in
European countries. The US injects tremendous amounts of money to stimulate economy;
hence, Asian countries still maintain their growth. While the real world economy is still
only in recovery stage; therefore, flow of money in the world are transferred to invest in
capital markets of developing countries and Asia, and also in other kind of commaodities all

around the world. Those are creating both opportunities and threats in the future.

For Thailand, the economy is quite solid as export sector keeps expanding,
household consumption and private investments are being recovered, government’s
projects become more effective. Despite unstable political threats during April to May,
strong economic base and compromising lifestyle are the main factors that reestablish

Thailand as peaceful country.

Real estate businesses are declined during short period of political turmoil, but

overall growth is optimistic despite more intense competition.

Company has planned to expand since 2010 onward by launching 5 new projects.
Company has formulated strategies in various aspects to achieve business goals; sales
1,692.6 million Baht, profit 326.5 million Baht, 37.7 % and 31.2% growth respectively,

with collaboration of employees from all departments

On behalf of Management team of Lalin Property Plc., we would like to thank all
employees for your commitment, passion to get through all difficulties. We highly
appreciate investors, financial institutions, and all related persons from all parties for your

kind support to Lalin Property Plc. throughout the year 2010.

(Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Executive Chairman
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asudolyamounisiou
Financial Highlights

AUNSWY (AUu1N) / Assets (Million Baht)

a2 v 2

AuA1ALMAE (Inventories) 3,150.68 3,265.83 3,806.79
AUNTneIN (Total Assets) 3,750.19 4,374.37 4,628.74
KUAUIIA:AUZOVGHoRU (A1Uun) Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht)
uﬁaumuﬁmu (Current Liabilities) 153.62 248.39 326.45
wilaulaivauiAen (Non-Current Liabilities) 150.40 500.10 500.32
wifAusan (Total Liabilities) 304.02 748.49 829.65
nuﬁfa@mmzﬁﬂﬂﬁwmﬁq (Paid up Share Capital) 825.00 825.00 825.00
douegniatiu (Shareholders’ Equity) 3,446.18 3,625.88 3,799.09
@an1saItuvIu (A1Uuin) Operation’s Result (Million Baht)

sel#arnnisang (Sales) 1,094.77 1,228.83 1,692.62
9el#39u (Total Revenue) 1,111.58 1,243.39 1,709.38
Snlafuud (Gross Prof) 434.01 496.08 683.35
flagnsd (Net Profit) 178.86 248.98 326.54
IRguIdudasicioriu (Un) Per Share Figure (Baht)

fnls (aa)w) gM3 (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.22 0.30 0.40
yaAANTEYT (Book Value) 4.18 4.40 4.60
yaAnald (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
Sas1dAUANWAADYNIWNISINU (Liquidity Ratio)

AngdauanINARaY (Current Ratio) 20.73 13.36 11.86
@j“mmmuamwcfmgqmuﬁﬂuﬁq (Quick Ratio) 0.17 1.21 0.26
dasrdsunaavaWawIsniunisinls (Profitability Ratio)

ﬁmﬁﬁﬂi%uﬁu (Gross Profit Margin) 39.64% 40.37% 40.37%
fmsnnlsannnisadinenu (Operation Profit Margin) 23.24% 28.20% 27.31%
8marinlaqns (Net Profit Margin) 16.09% 20.02% 19.10%
fnauanauLugDail (Return on Equities) 5.28% 7.04% 8.80%
dasrdsuds:Ansnwiunisanitiuviu (Efficiency Ratio)

FATHARRLLNLANNINTRWMAA (Return on Asset) 4.62% 6.13% 7.25%
dasrdouulyurgnWNISU (Financial Policy Ratio)

@meuﬂauﬁi@dqwméﬁ@ﬁu (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.09 0.21 0.22
'a"m"]zhummmmmﬁwmﬂﬂLﬁﬂ (Interest Coverage Ratio) 13.36 21.65 22.48
SuauuiFangezud (&1umu) Number of Outstanding Shares (Million Shares) 825.00 825.00 825.00
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+ Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin GIBA Chu-
lalongkorn University and The Wharton School
University of Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” Graduate
School of Management North-Western University
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(a1sa.) @‘uﬁ 14 endatlestiustenansans

« Director Certification Program (DCP) ifu 65-10D
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University of East - Philippines

« Director Certification Program (DCP) @‘u 63 -10D

4. wieiling Anstlsvacd 67 |« Certificate in Real Estate Management University - | 2538 - flaquiu | féweennslasens | avianendusssudnans | @ontunistinen
NITUNIT NITUNNTDATE UAY at Hawaii ganaedamiauning
NIINNNIATIAADL + 1ryaynln 1amnagshia International Trade and

Finance School of Economics and Business
“Administration, Sweden”

« Director Certification Program (DCP) ifu 85-10D

5. AMANEA T10Yine 63 [+ Wyl Uivnagsia (MBA) svinende - 2547 - 2551 18118N"3 dninauaninssung WUIENTUTITNTT
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Board of Directors and Management

Name/Position

Education

Working Experience

Position Business

Company

Taveesak Watcharekawong [ 64 |« Over 30 years experience in Real Estate 28.30 | 2003 - Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. | Property Development
Chairman Business 1988 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd. Property Development
(Authorized Director)
Chaiyan Chakarakul 61 [+ Bachelor Degree in Commerce (honour) 34.36 | 2003 - Present | Managing Director | Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. | Property Development
Director and Thammasart University 1998 - 2002 Managing Director | Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd. Property Development
Managing Director + M.S.Thammasart University
(Authorized Director) » Real Estate Management,
Chulalongkorn University # 8
« Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin GIBA
Chulalongkorn University and The Wharton
School University of Pennsyvania and “Kel-
logg” Graduate School of Management North-
Western University
« The National Defence for joint state-private
sectors course, class 14
« DCP Class 65 - 10D
« Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 7
Suvarn Tansathit 66 |+ (M.SC)in Commerce 2006 - Present Director / Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd. [ Financial Institution
Independent Director University of SANTO TOMAS Senior Executive
and Chairman of The « BBA (management) Vice President
Audit Committee University of East Philippine 1998 - 2006 Senior Executive | Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd. | Financial Institution
» DCP Class 63 - 10D Vice President
Special Asset
Management
Niputh Jitprasonk 67 |« Certificate in Real Estate Management 1995 - Present Director of Thammasat University Educational Institution
Independent Director and University at Hawaii Real Estate
Member of Audit Committee + MBA International Trade and Financial School Management
of Economics and Business Administration, Program
Sweden
+ DCP Class 85 - 10D
Satit Chanjavanakul 63 | « MBA Thammasat University 2004 - 2008 | Secretary General, | Board of Investment (BOI) Government
Independent Director and * M.Sc. (Textile Technology), Board of
Member of Audit Committee University of Leeds, U.K. Investment (BOI),
= Bachelor of Engineering 2003 - 2004 Deputy Secretary | Board of Investment (BOI) Government
(Industrial Engineering), General, Board of
Chulalongkorn University Investment (BOI)
« The National Defence for joint state-private 2001 - 2003 Deputy Permanent | Ministry of Industry Government
sectors course, class 14 Secretary, Ministry
« DCP Class 83 - IOD of Industry
- Capital Market Academy (CMA), Class 5
Nat Sangarsongkogk 51 |+ MBA Rangsit University 0.04 | 2003 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. | Property Development
Director, * Real Estate Management, Managing Director

Company's Executive
Secretary and Assistant
Managing Director
(Authorized Director)

Chulalongkorn University # 11
DCP Class 67 - 10D

2000 - 2002

1989 - 2000

Senior Project Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd. Property Development
Management
Manager

Project Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd. Property Development
Management

Manager
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7. wellnyad gannsiia 49 |+ 1Bryry1ln (Master of Administration) #12n13u 2546 - aqiiu Hat uaa.afa Wiemnei Wanadanzaning
na7aNIT “Armstrong University, USA” ﬂi‘?um?b}'ﬂ“mn’\?
wazfdaanssuniagdanis - tyldoudia avinendenganm 2545 Hiael van 084 qunsafuay | indlsiouel
AN RULATINAU « Director Certification Program (DCP) §14 69 - 0D nesumsganns | Aot
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« 1Brygss (Wmsnunaadng) 2531 - 2545 gannsthe UAN. AR Waud uauding | Wannadansanine
wnAnedeglaviusssngng mnsauneaing

12

s1ieouls:oU 2553

USUh ada wSewwesd sna (i)




Name/Position

Education

SUEIC]
Holder
(%)

Position

Working Experience

Company

Business

7. Paiboon Udomkarnkit 49 MBA (Finance) Armstrong University, USA 2003 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. Property Development
Director and Bachelor of Accounting Managing Director
Assistant Managing Director Bangkok University 2002 Assistant BEC THAI Equipment & Chemical
DCP Class 69 - I0D Managing Director | Chemical Co., Ltd.
1998 - 2001 Finance Manager | Pacific Internet (Thailand) Communications
Co., Ltd.
8. Chucheep Ditsathien 45 MBA (Marketing & Finance) 2004 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. | Property Development
Director and Thammasat University Managing Director
Assistant Managing Director Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering) 2002 - 2004 Manager Thai Rung Union Car Automotives
Chulalongkorn University Managing Director | Public Co., Ltd.
DCP Class 84 - 10D Office
1999 - 2002 Assistant Thai Rating and Information Consultant
Manager Services Co., Ltd.
Performance
Appraisal
Department
1990 - 1998 Project Manager | Krisda Mahanakorn Public Property Development
Co., Ltd.
9. Narong Sangarsongkogk 57 Master of Public and Private Management 2000 - Present Senior Project Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd. | Property Development

Senior Project Construction

Manager

(MPPM), NIDA

Bachelor of Engineering, Phillipines
Bachelor of Engineering, (Construction
Management)

Sukothai Dhammatirat University

Mini MBA Chulalongkorn University
Mini MBA Thammasat University

1988 - 2000

Construction
Manager
Project
Construction

Manager

Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.

Property Development

13
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Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company currently
has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong serves as
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Company is the sole developer and
owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house, semi detached houses (new concept
homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan Lalin in
the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”. The projects
cover 5 major regions of Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone, the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and

southern zone. This has provided the basis for the Company’s business direction for the past 23 years.

With its extensive experience spanning over 20 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing segment,
targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a market supported
by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht per month. This market also
includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing product development, to meet the needs
of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs with a regard for functionality; contemporary
design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built on

good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to make the
Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of designs to choose
from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built homes and built-to-order
homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of its customers, inspiring them with

confidence in its operations.

15
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Overview of Thailand’s Economy

The growth is positive after declining growth of 2009.

Growth rate of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the past (percent)

Thailand’s economy in 2010 grew at the rate of 7.8%, the highest growth in last 15 years since 2005 which grew at 9.2%.

2003 6.9% 6.6% 6.7% 8.3% 71%
2004 6.7% 6.6% 6.3% 5.9% 6.3%
2005 3.6% 4.7% 5.5% 4.7% 4.6%
2006 6.2% 5.2% 4.8% 4.5% 5.1%
2007 4.6% 4.5% 5.3% 5.3% 4.9%
2008 6.4% 5.2% 2.9% -4.2% 2.5%
2009 -1.1% -4.9% 2.7% 5.8% -2.3%
2010 12.0% 9.2% 6.6% 3.8% 7.8%

Even though there are many unfavorable factors throughout the year 2010 including political instability and crisis in May,
monetary fluctuation and capital flow, environmental threats in terms of drought at the beginning and flood at the end of year.
However, Thailand’s economy is capable of expanding to 7.8%, which is supported by recovery of global economy due to
economic stimulation measures of many countries and supporting factor in term of domestic demands. Private investment and
household consumption expand at the rate of 13.8% and 4.8% respectively while overall export value in Dollar expands at the
rate of 28.5% in 2010, higher than 14% of 2009.

Tourism sector can expand despite critical factor due to political crisis during 2nd quarter, chaos in 3 southern provinces,
and flood in northeastern and southern areas during last quarter. When disaster is recovered, a number of tourists resume visit-
ing; in 2009, there are 16.0 million inbound tourists, 13.2% higher than last year. The figures are mainly derived from tourists of
East Asia, ASEAN, and South Asia.

Economic stability of 2010 is favorable in both domestic and international aspects. Unemployment rate in the country is
low at the rate of 1.04% in 2010, declining from 1.50% of 2009. Inflation rate increases from last year and price pressure is high
due to economic expansion, rise of wages, and rise of commodity prices. Inflation of 2010 is 3.3%, increasing from minus 0.9%

of last year while core inflation of 2010 is1.0%, increasing from 0.3% of last year.

International economic stability is also favorable in terms of trade balance and surplus on balance on current account. In
2010, surplus trade balance of Thailand is 14,031.22 million US Dollar, surplus balance of service and money transfer is 753.23
million US Dollar, so total surplus balance on current account is 14,784.42 million US Dollar. Surplus capital account balance
is 15,628.36 million US Dollar; total balance of payments is 31,324.34 million US Dollar, increasing from 24,126.57 million US
Dollar of last year. Moreover, number of foreign exchange reserve is sufficient at 172,128.9 million US Dollar at the end of 2010,
increasing from 138,417.6 million US Dollar at the end of 2009.
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Graph showing the movement of inflation rate in the past 5 years
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Thailand economy in 2011 is likely to expand from 2010, despite declining rate based on tendency of export sector and
production in industry sector which is gradually recovered. Bank of Thailand forecasts about Thailand’s economy on January
21st, 2011 that economy cab expand at the rate of 3.0-5.0%, while Office of The National Economic and Social Development
Board (NESDB) anticipates on February 21st, 2011 that Thailand’s economy can grow at the rate of 3.5-4.5, inflation of 2.8-3.8%.
Export value in US Dollar increase at the rate of 12.5%, private consumption expand at 4.0%, private investment expand at 8.5%,
unemployment rate is 0.9% approximately, and surplus current account balance is 3.5% of GDP. However, there are many factors
that affect economic expansion such as food and oil prices that are likely to increase, especially oil prices, thus causing higher

inflation than forecasted and world economic recession. Political instability can also affect country’s economy.
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Overview of Real Estate Industry

Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2010

Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

Number of newly completed and registered housing units in Bangkok and Vicinities during year 2006-2010

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)
1. Built by Developers

- Detached house 16,700 16,390 13,437 10,863 11,461

- Semi-detached house 869 1,436 2,133 1,000 1,289

- Townhouse and shop house 14,632 14,931 11,943 9,771 12,538

- Condominium 18,607 17,432 34,049 53,725 57,167
Total of building by developers 50,808 50,189 61,562 75,359 82,455
2. Private construction

- Detached house 26,064 22,315 21,181 18,135 20,430

- Semi-detached house 96 120 163 138 142

- Townhouse and shop house 2,789 2,906 2,673 1,345 2,125
Total for private construction 28,949 25,341 24,017 19,618 22,697
Total of newly completed and registered housing 79,757 75,530 85,579 94,977 105,152
Rate of change (%)
1. Built by Developers

- Detached house - -1.86% -18.02% -19.16% 5.50%

- Semi-detached house - 65.25% 48.54% -53.12% 28.90%

- Townhouse and shop house - 2.04% -20.01% -18.19% 28.32%

- Condominium - -6.31% 95.32% 57.79% 6.41%
Total of building by developers - -1.22% 22.66% 22.41% 9.42%
2. Private construction

- Detached house - -14.38% -5.08% -14.38% 12.66%

- Semi-detached house - 25.00% 35.83% -15.34% 2.90%

- Townhouse and shop house - 4.20% -8.02% -49.68% 57.99%
Total for private construction - -12.46% -5.22% -18.32% 15.69%
Total of newly completed and registered housing - -5.30% 13.30% 10.98% 10.71%
Proportion of each registered residence

- Detached house 53.62% 51.24% 40.45% 30.53% 30.33%

- Semi-detached house 1.21% 2.06% 2.68% 1.20% 1.36%

- Townhouse and shop house 21.84% 23.62% 17.08% 11.70% 13.94%

- Condominium 23.33% 23.08% 39.79% 56.57% 54.37%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Based on data of registered accommodation in Bangkok and vicinities, Real Estate Information Center (REIC), numbers of

register construction by entrepreneurs (contracted) in 2010 are 82,455 units, increasing by 9.42% of 2009. Registered numbers

of town house and commerce buildings built in 2010 by entrepreneurs recovers after declining during the last 2 years. In 2010,

total registered units are 12,538 units, increasing by 28.32% from 2009. Registered numbers of single houses and semi-detached

houses built in 2010 by entrepreneurs are 12,750 units, increasing by 7.48% from 2009, or 11,863 units.
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The numbers of registered condominium increase at the declining rate from large quantity in last year. Condominiums are

57,167 units in 2010, increasing by 53,725 units from last year or 6.41% growth

The numbers of registered personal accommodations in 2010 are 22,697 units, increasing by 15.69% from last year. All
types of accommodation has seen expansion in which registered number of single houses are 20,340 units, 12.66% growth,

semi-detached houses 142 units, 2.90% growth, and town house and commercial buildings 2,125 units, 57.99% growth

From last 5 years, the proportions of registered number of single house to total registered numbers are gradually declining.
In 2006, registered numbers of single house account for almost half of all and decline to 30.33% in 2010. The registered numbers
of condominium is increasing from 23.33% in 2006, to 54.37% in 2010. The registered numbers of town house and commercial

buildings have continually decreased for 2 years but total contribution has increased by 13.94% of total registered number.

Significant factors influencing the real estate industry
In 2010, unfavorable factors have affected the industry including, political and social conflict, thus causing a lot of casual-

ties during May, increasing interest in the second half of year, expired real estate stimulation measures in the first half of year,

tendency of increasing prices of oil and construction materials. However, overall growth of real estate industry is positive in 2010

versus last year, with favorable factors from economic recovery, increasing rate of interest due to economic upturn but signifi-

cantly low, liquidity is expected and reliable telecommunication network of government sector. Summary of relevant factors that
affect real estate industry in 2010 include

. Economic expansion in 2010 is the main factor that influences growth in real estate industry at the rate of 7.8%, highest
ever during last 15 years. Normally, real estate industry is directly associated with economic expansion.

. Interest rate that gradually decreased in the first half of 2009, and stay low until the first half of 2010 is the influential factor
that promotes accommodation buying during economic recovery. However, economic expansion and increasing inflation
are the factors that drive interest rate in the second half of 2010. Policy interest rate gradually increases from 1.25% in
mid year 2010 to 2.00% in the end of the year (0.75% increase) and the number is likely to increase in 2011. The figure is
forecasted to be 3.00% at the end of 2011. MLR interest of commercial banks which is able to affect purchasing behavior
of consumers will be adjusted based on policy interest rate at lower rate from 5.875% in mid year 2010 to 6.125% at the
end of year (0.25% increase) (MLR rate of Bangkok Bank, Bank of Thailand as of February 28th, 2011) The figure is likely
to increase based on policy interest rate; MLR rate is expected to be 7.125% approximately at the end 2011. Increase in
MLR rate affects consumers in terms of decreasing purchasing power and likeliness to request loan for accommodation.

However, interest rate will be increased gradually and associated with economic recovery, thus flexible for customers.
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Expiration of real estate stimulation measures including reduction of specific tax, from 3.30% to 0.11%, reduction of
ownership transfer fee, from 2.00% to 0.01%, reduction of mortgage fee, from 1.00% to 0.01%. The first measure was
expired in March 28th, 2010; the latter two measures were expired on June 30th, 2010. After measure expiration, some
consumers delay purchase in the short run and overall market declined during the 3rd quarter. However, overall market
was recovered in the last quarter.
Political and social instability causing casualties during May 2010 significantly affect tourism sector, confidence of
consumers and entrepreneurs, thus discouraging buying decision but overall market was quickly recovered once the
situation was stable.
Based on expansion of overall real estate industry and personal loan for accommodation, especially loan for condominium
that grows significantly for last 3 years, Bank of Thailand have warned in the second half of 2010 and issue Loan to Value
during November to control commercial banks that grant loans for accommodation with the price of less than 10 million
Baht. Loan for vertical accommodation can be granted at no more than 90% of collateral, effective from January 1st, 2011
onward. For horizontal accommodation, loan can be granted at no more than 95% of collateral, effective from January 1st,
2012 onward. In case that commercial banks require granting more loan, calculation weight of risk asset will increase,
thus affecting cost of banks. That measures may somewhat affect vertical accommodation in case that ownership transfer
period of customer is due on 2011 and require saving at 10% of selling price. But condominiums in the beginning period
of sales are affected as customers can prepare and pay down payment during construction period. However, it is believe
that LTV control measure will become favorable factor for accommodation industry in the long run.
Crude oil prices are likely to increase; in 2010, average prices of Dubai crude are higher than 2009 at the rate of 27.63%,
which continually grow from the 4th quarter of 2010 to the 1st quarter of 2011. In February of 2011, overall crude oil prices
increase more than $100/Barrel due to instability in Middle East, especially protest in Libya. Increase in oil price inevitably
affects overall economic condition, as well as real estate industry.

Dubai Crude oil price (Unit : $USD/Barrel)

Quarter

Average Price

2006 61.50 58.14 64.95 66.11 57.20
2007 68.44 1552 64.82 69.94 83.27
2008 93.50 90.97 116.51 103.88 52.93
2009 61.28 43.47 57.89 68.18 75.00
2010 78.21 76.08 78.08 74.24 84.45
Source : FPO

In 2010, average price of construction materials slightly increase from 2009 (construction material price index, Ministry
of Commerce). However, prices of steel products are likely to increase; average prices in 2010 increase at 7.05% versus
last year, and likely to increase in 2011 based on growing demand for residence construction and basic infrastructures of

government.
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 YOY

Overall Index 100.0 103.7 108.8 127.4 110.8 113.3 2.26%
- Wood and wood products 100.0 105.4 109.8 118.8 133.4 135.8 1.80%
- Cement 100.0 104.6 106.7 114.2 112.8 104.2 -7.62%
- Concrete products 100.0 103.8 105.1 109.8 103.8 102.5 -1.25%
- Steel and steel product 100.0 98.6 108.8 150.5 103.6 110.9 7.05%
- Tiles and peripheral materials 100.0 103.0 106.6 109.1 110.7 110.6 -0.09%
- Surface coating materials 100.0 103.0 102.2 105.8 113.2 113.8 0.53%
- Sanitary ware 100.0 112.6 123.5 131.8 148.9 144.5 -2.96%
- Electrical devices and plumbing 100.0 109.8 113.9 114.7 108.2 110.4 2.03%
- Other construction materials 100.0 108.8 110.2 118.3 119.2 122.8 3.02%

Real estate industry trend in 2011
Real estate trend in 2011 is likely to expand at declining rate, like Thailand’s economy, in which the industry will be driven by
investment sector, expanding consumption, increasing income of consumers that influence purchasing power, and governmental

support to invest in infrastructure developments in terms of new roads, and mass railway network to suburb.

However, real estate industry in 2011 has encountered risk factors that slow down expansion in terms of increasing inter-
est that decreases purchasing power and likeliness to request loan for accommodation, increasing prices of lands, construction
materials and wages, LTV control measure in 2011 that applied for condominium, excess supply from last year that leads to

intense competition, and risk of political and social instability.

For single house and town house market, the main buyers are the real users (Real Demand) and the shrinking market from
last 1-2 years will be expanded in 2011. Some demand will contribute to condominium demand. Condominium market is likely
to expand at the declining rate in 2011 due to many factors such as excess supplies during last 2-3 years while selling rate is
shrinking, LTV measure that Bank of Thailand applies with condominium this year. More measures may be launched in case that
condominium speculation is high. Steady increase of interest rate and price per square meter can reduce speculation for invest-
ment, moreover, mass railway network will be expanded to suburb; in 2010, Airport Railway Link from Phayathai to Suvarnabhumi
Airport is opened. In 2011 Onnut-Bearing route will be opened and many routes are in progress for the next 4-5 years. These
factors drive demand of single houses and town houses to substitute condominium according that, at the same price range, single

houses and town houses with spaces can facilitate family living while condominium can accommodate just only 1-2 persons.
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Risk Factors

During the course of business operation, the Company could face potential risks which affect its operating result in the

future as follows:

1.

Risk of increasing interest rate

Economy of 2010 is recovered with growth rate of 7.8%, versus declining growth rate of 2.3% in 2009, and inflation
rate keeps increasing; hence interest rate at the end of 2010 is likely to increase. Bank of Thailand approves to increase
Policy Interest Rate (R/P 1 day) for 3 times, from 1.25% to 2.00% at the end of 2010. Commercial banks have increased
Minimum Loan Rate for approximately 0.25% in 2010 and interest rate is likely to gradually increase in 2011 according to

economic recovery and trend of increasing inflation.

The trend of increasing interest rate may somehow affects customers’ ability to purchase real estate, thus
influencing company’s cost. However, low rate of debts result in significantly low interest expense, compared with company’s
revenue. Moreover, company applies preventive actions to alleviate risk of increasing interest rate by compromising with
financial institution to sign long-term loan contract with fixed interest rate, issuing draft so as to minimize financial cost, and
keep continually updated on financial trends both in domestic and international market. Relevant data will be presented in

Executive Meeting in order to assess the situations and take action accordingly.

Risk of Loan to Value (LTV) ratio control measure

In November 2010, Bank of Thailand (BOT) has set measure to prevent crisis in real estate business, thus issuing
regulations to control commercial banks granting loan for real estate of less than 10 million Baht. Loan for condominium
should be granted at no more than 90% of collateral, effective January 1st, 2011 onward. For low rise, loan can be granted
at no more than 95% of collateral effective January 1st, 2012 onward. In case that commercial banks grant loan within
specified LTV level, calculation of risk-weighted assets will be 35% of loan, on the other hand, if commercial banks grant
loan beyond specified LTV level, calculation of risk-weighted assets will be 75% of loan; which results in ratio of capital

requirement divided by risk assets (BIS Ratio) and cost of commercial banks increase.

The LTV control measure influence house buyers to increase savings prior to purchasing, in case that buyers
request loan at the rate that beyond specified standard, commercial banks may apply higher interest rate to compensate
increasing cost. However, company believes that LTV control measure will positively affect property industry in the long run.
In company’s standpoint, risk of being affected by this measure is limited as most of company’s product is the horizontal
products and main customers possess real demand. They are likely to have some savings prior to making decision and
purchase for their own use. Currently, customers install down payment no less than 5% to 10% so, psychologically, impact

of LTV measure may insignificantly affects buyers.

Risk of economic recession
Real estate development industry is driving in association with economic situations; economic downturn or recession

inevitably affects real estate business.

In 2010, Thailand’s business expanded at the rate of 7.8% versus declining growth of 2.3% in 2009. Economic
situation in 2011 is forecasted to expand at the declining rate by comparing with last year. Bank of Thailand forecasted on
January 21st, 2011 that growth of Thailand’ business can expand at the rate of 3-5%. Company has also assessed the risk
from economic situation by Chairman Level and Executive Chairman Level in order to closely monitor the trend. Plans and

corporate strategies will be formulated to respond to economic situations in specific period accordingly.
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Risk of expired government’s measure to stimulate real estate sector
Government’s measure to stimulate real estate sector was expired at the first half of 2010, March 28th, consisting of
measure to reduce specific business tax from 3.30% to 0.11%, measure to reduce ownership transfer fee from 2.00% to
0.01%, and measure to reduce mortgage fee from 1.00% to 0.01% which is expired on June 30th, 2010. After expiration
of those measures, some customers delay purchase and overall sales in this industry declined during quarter 3rd of 2010.
However, it is likely to recover in the last quarter of the year. Customers are likely to be adaptable and encounter limited
impact after measure expiration in 2011. In company’s point of view, end of measures results in obligation to pay specific

business tax at the rate of 3.30% as usual, thus bearing higher expenses.

Risk of higher construction materials cost

In 2010, overall prices of crude oil, commodities, and construction materials were increasing after decline in 2009.
High prices of construction materials directly affect cost of construction. However, company has carefully managed risk
in term of construction material cost by purchasing main materials with company processes. Since company has many
projects, bargaining power is quite high and materials are purchased in bulk. Moreover, company keeps updated on price
movement of materials and purchase the products that are likely to be more expensive by using future buying approach.
At the end of 2010, prices of many construction materials were likely to increase until 2011 based on economic expansion
and usage demand; therefore, company has negotiated with suppliers about purchase of steel, tile, roof, etc. to lock prices
of the main construction materials at fixed ranges and help company controls cost of construction materials in 2011. In
addition, company tries to acquire quality substitutes and continually studies the possibilities to apply new construction

technologies.

Risk from commercial banks’ stricter loan approval

Recently, commercial banks have increasingly strict rules in loan consideration for entrepreneurs (Pre-Finance) and
consumers (Post-Finance). For entrepreneur loan, commercial banks have been more cautious to consider and approve
project loan especially those who are non-listed companies. Consequently, the access to source of fund is more difficult.
However, the Company’s financial status remains strong and use investment money from debt at low proportion. Furthermore,
the Company have had excellent track record of creating non -performing loan for long time with any financial institutes
despite the economic crisis in 1997. As the result, the Company is exposed to less risk in this particular area and has
adequate cash flow and loan credit for business expansion according to short-term plan. The Company also has alliance

with banks which are ready for additional loan support given to the Company if required.

For consumer loan (Post-Finance), commercial banks intensify more strict rules in loan consideration. In most
general cases of house buying, customers are necessary to ask for loan from commercial banks at 90% of house price.
Therefore, the Company’s the total amount of realized revenue inevitably depends on loan granted by commercial banks.
Based on the current fact that personal loan industry has grown rapidly, it affects consumers’ spending behavior. Those
consumers spend more future money through several types of personal loan such as credit card and other personal
loans which reduce number of house buyers. Meanwhile, commercial banks have implemented stricter regulations upon
loan approval for house buyers that makes some consumers lose opportunity to buy houses. However, the Company has
closely followed consumers’ situation and each commercial bank’s loan approval policy in order to adjust the Company’s
policy associated with updated situation in each particular period of time. In addition, the Company in cooperation with
certain commercial banks presents special offers to those customers who buy houses in the Company’s project such as
providing loan approval for 100% of house price, calculating interest at lower rate compared with market rate and allowing

payback in ladder pattern.
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Risk factor from lack of skilled labors in construction works

Nowadays, many entrepreneurs are in real estate development business either listed in stock market or non-listed
from outside the market. Besides, government has continuously developed infrastructure construction. In this case, there
has resulted in lack of skillful labors for the Company’s house construction project. To manage the risk, the Company has
started to use the new construction technology which can minimize the labor requirement. Also the company has policy to
create good relationship with the Company’s contractors continuously, and allocate the jobs to each contractor according
to what kind of job they specialize in. The Company will assign the jobs for project construction manager, project engineer,
head of project construction supervisor, construction works supervisor and QC officers to control and oversee construction

works by contractors. That will assure the quality of construction works by each contractor.

Risk factor from pre-built houses

After the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs use the strategy to build the finished houses first before sale in the
market in order to boost the consumers’ confidence. The mentioned strategy requires such a huge amount of investment
capital which probably causes lack of financial liquidity and could be exposed to risk from consumers’ changing
behavior. However, the Company considers this type of risk at low level since the Company will thoroughly conduct study
on consumers and then formulate efficient construction plan. There will be the combination of goods for each type of house,
among finished houses, Semi Pre Built, and built by order. The development of construction works will be consequently
according to the forecasted sales. In addition, the Company has low proportion of D/E, strict policy to control circulating
cash. Finally, the Company still has large portion in line of credit with several financial institutes which reduces the risk

probability caused by lack of financial liquidity.

Risk factor from land acquisition

The increase of land price in particular areas, especially, the location nearby BTS line or expected infrastructure
development causes profit speculation and excessive land price setting without fitting in appropriate current basic
condition. Meanwhile, new issue of city plan law and other regulations which control the land utilization reduce the land
areas to be used in business. However, the Company has careful measurement to control the risk from land procurement by
studying marketing feasibility, considering the limitation of related laws and other regulations and analyzing optimal return
from each plot of land in details. Pushing a draft of land and building law by government which will enforce to collect more
land tax from unused lands may increase land ownership transfer and lower the land price which are good opportunities

for the Company with strong financial status to engage in the investment.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities

1.  Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which 825,000,000
Baht was paid-up. This comprises 825,000,000 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 104,934,500 of the Company’s ordinary shares were held by investors
investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 31, 2010, representing 12.72% of all paid-up shares.
As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock), the holders of non-NVDR shares
have 14.57% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 21.82% of the paid-up ordinary shares will have a voting
right equal to 25% of all voting shares.

Investors can check the most updated name of Company’s stock holder investing through Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. at

The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website (www.set.or.th)

2. Warrants
As of December 31, 2010, the Company has the following warrants which can be exercised to purchase the
Company’s ordinary shares:
- Warrants to buy ordinary shares of Lalin Property Plc. issued under the 1st employee stock ownership plan to the
directors, executives, and employees of the Company):

- Total issued warrants : 15,000,000 units

- Total exercised as of December 31, 2010 : 0 unit

- The remaining amount of warrant : 15,000,000 units

- Exercise ratio : 1 unit : 1 ordinary share

- Exercise price : Baht 2.91 per share

- Exercise period : On the15th of every June and December
- Expiry date : June 1, 2012

Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 31, 2010

As of August 31, 2010, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented as follows.

No. Name of shareholder Number of shares %
1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 283,502,750 34.36
2 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 233,502,750 28.30
3 | Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 104,934,500 12.72
4 Chase Nominees Limited 1 25,000,000 3.08
5 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 22,858,100 2.77
6 FORTIS GLOBAL CUSTODY SERVICES N.V. 17,300,000 2.10
7 Mr.Chaiporn Rewtakoon 10,255,600 1.24
8 Mr.Ongarch Vorawitlikit 8,479,000 1.03
9 Mr.Tosapond Saimuckka 6,972,200 0.85

10 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 6,677,800 0.81
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Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of approximately 30 percent of net profit after taxes, barring any
exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations of the Company.
The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating performance and financial
status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration. The dividend pay-out must be ap-
proved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors. In 2010, the Company announced a dividend payment
to Shareholders in the rate of 0.185 Baht per share. Under normal conditions, the Company’s shares provide a dividend that is

higher than the interest deposit rate quoted by most commercial banks.

Organization Chart

ANUINSSUNISOSI9AOU

Audit Committees

drgasdredounigiu
Internal Audit Department
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Management Structure
The Company’s Directorial structure comprises 3 committees: the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the

Executive Committee, with details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.

A)

The Board of Directors

In 2010, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2010, the Board had

8 members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1.

Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman
Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman
Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director
Mr. Paiboon Udomkarnkit Director & Executive Director

. Mr. Chucheep Ditsathien Director & Executive Director

@ N e e N

Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk serves as Company Secretary.

The Company’s Directors authorized to enter into binding obligations in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association comprise a total of 3 Directors as follows.

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul 3. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk

Two in three of the following individuals are authorised signatories, together with the Company seal.

Scope of duties and authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions of
Shareholders’ Meetings

Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk management;
oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency and effectiveness
Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information with accuracy,
completeness, to standard and with transparency

Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks, except those
prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’'s Meeting resolutions.

Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any
other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes
concerning the matter in question

Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months

Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s accounting year.
Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar nature with
the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to Shareholders prior to
appointment as a Director
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B) The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position
1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock Exchange Act, and
has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports. In 2009 the audit committee convened
a total of 5 meetings. Ms.Kanitha Changkate, Internal audit Manager, serves as audit committee secretary

Scope of duties and authorities of the Audit Committee

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of Directors on the following

matters:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and efficient,
to determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of
the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.

3, To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, and the
laws relating to the Company’s business.

4. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such person’s
remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year.

5, To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they are
in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are presented accurately and comprehensively.
To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.

7. To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be signed by
the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:

(a)  Anopinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,

(b)  An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,

(c)  Anopinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, or the laws
relating to the Company’s business,

d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee member,

g) Anopinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties in accordance

with the charter, and

(h)  Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders
and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s board
of directors; and

8. To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the audit committee.
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<)

D)

The Executive Committee
In 2010 the Executive Committee convened a total of 44 meetings and as of December 31, 2010 had 4 Directors, as

follows.

Name of Director Position
1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
3. Mr. Paiboon Udomkarnkit Executive Director
4. Mr. Chucheep Ditsathien Executive Director

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1. The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with the policies of the
Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles of Association. Exceptions are made
for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholders’ Meeting resolutions.

2. The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of financial debt
instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors, specific investors and institutional
investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or payments for the normal business operations of the
Company, such as investment outlays, or for the purchase of land or land with constructions and other activities. The
limit for each transaction is determined at a maximum of 700 million Baht, or an equivalent amount, or as assigned
by the Board of Directors

3. Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of Managing Director

4. Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the Company to the Board
of Directors

B, Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination of the organizational
structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection, training, hiring and removal of Company
employees.

6. Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for business operations and
the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with the business plans and business strategies
to complement the policies and business direction presented to the Board of Directors

7. Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive Directors or
other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of conflict of interest with the
Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes concerning
the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible conflict of transaction must be carried out in
compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the guidelines, method and disclosure
of listed company related transactions.

Management Board
As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Assistant Managing Director (General Management)

3. Mr. Paiboon Udomkarnkit Assistant Managing Director (Finance and Investor Relationship)
4. Mr. Chucheep Ditsathien Assistant Managing Director (Construction Management)

5. Mr. Narong Sangarsongkogk Senior Project Construction Manager

6. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Accounting and Information system Manager

7. Mr. Seri Sintuas Finance Manager
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Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Managing Director
The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the Board of

Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The ordinary operating

activities of the company are defined as follows:

. To approve the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the company. This
shall not include the purchase of the land.

. To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in accordance
with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall not include any loans or
guarantee.

Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict of
interest with the company or the subsidiaries.

Selection of Directors and Executives

Appointment and removal of Company Directors

1.

Company Directors are appointed by Shareholders’ Meeting, wherein there will be no less than five Directors and at least

half of the total number of Directors must be resident in the Kingdom

The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:

(1) Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share

(2)  Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per Item (1) to nominate one or several persons
as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular individual

(3) Individuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors according to the number
of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie, but the appointment of both candidates would
exceed the number of Directors required or to be voted in, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote.

At each Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required to vacate their

posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closest to 1 in 3 is to be used. In the first and second

years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate their posts will be decided by a lottery system. In

successive years, the longest serving Directors will be obliged to vacate their posts first.

In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to

(1) Death

(2)  Resignation

(3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act

(4)  The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not less than 3 in 4 of the

number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing at least half of the votes in attendance
and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required
Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation becomes effective
upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.

Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are not reviewed

by the Nominations Committee, since the Company currently does not have such a committee. Nonetheless, the Board of

Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications, knowledge, capabilities and relevant working experience. This

includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68 of the Public Limited Companies Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992) and the relevant

Announcements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. This is in the interests of ensuring the Company’s efficient operations.
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Remuneration for Directors and Management
1. Monetary remuneration
(a)  The remuneration of the Company’s Directors in 2010

# of attended Remuneration

. Total
Name of Directors Position Board of  Audit Meeting — Remu- Amount

. . Allowance neration o
Director Committee - - (BBMillion)

(BMillion) ~ (BMillion)
1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong | Chairman 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05

Executive Chairman

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.35 0.40
Independent Director &
Chairman of the
Audit Committee

4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.35 0.40
Independent Director &
Member of the Audit Committee

5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.35 0.40
Independent Director &
Member of the Audit Committee

6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
7. Mr. Paiboon Udomkarnkit Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
8. Mr. Chucheep Ditsathien Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
Total 0.40 1.05 1.45

(b)  Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2010 for 8 individuals was provided in the
form of salary, per diem, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 26.79 million Baht.
2. Other remuneration

- none

Audit fees

The 2010 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Mr. Ampol Jamnongwat with
auditor license no. 4663 or Ms. Wanraya Buddhisatean with auditor license no. 4387 or Mr. Naris Saowalaksakul with auditor
license no. 5693 from S.K. Accountant Service Co., Ltd. to be the 2010 company’s auditor. All the auditors listed above have
no relationship or any interest with the company / subsidiaries / executives / major shareholders or related to such person in
anyway. The audit fees were determined at 658,500 Baht, rising from last year which was at 630,000 baht. For non-audit item, in
the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this auditing office which costs 40,000 baht.
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Personnel

The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :
Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank

Provident funds

Social security

= @y =

Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave, injury, housing, natural
disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company has organized
annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in organization, and arranged to
check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had a total of 199 employees (not including Directors and management), catego-

rised according to the major operations as follows.

Full-time Part-time
Project Sites 77 - 77
Construction 64 = 64
Head Office 87 - 87
Total 228 - 228

In 2010, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 70.81 million Baht.

Personnel development policies

The Company has a policy encouraging systematic and ongoing human resources development. As necessary, the
Company prepares the annual employee training plan for staff at all levels of the organization, to enhance their knowledge and
capabilities. This in turn leads to pay-offs reflected in the quality of the Company’s products and services for ultimate customer
satisfaction, which is the highest ideal of the business. Personnel development begins as soon as an employee is hired, with
obligatory orientation, courses to instill a service minded approach and other programs relevant to their job in the Company.
In addition, the annual training plans provide for normal training courses and special training projects targeting both general
employees and management. Programs include training for service and sales; training for work supervision and project quality
standards; as well as MBA and Mini MBA programs for the Company’s management.

In addition to personnel development as per the annual training plan, the Company has set up a special personnel
development department for ‘star’ employees with exceptional potential. They are offered Individual Development Programs to
enhance their knowledge and skills, with a view to assuming management positions in the future.

Insider information controls
The Company has a policy forbidding Directors and management from using significant insider information about the

Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the trading of Company securities. The measures

regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain is outlined as follows.

(1)  Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake in the Company;
this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity ownership are likewise required to be
reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure 275 of the Securities and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535
(A.D. 1992)

(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that management are informed that Executives with access to significant insider
information which has the potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities are advised to refrain from
trading in the Company’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is not permitted to be disclosed to other parties
prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial statements or the information in question. In order to control
and monitor compliance in this regard, the Company has a policy requiring management to report their shareholdings and
any subsequent changes in securities to the Board of Directors, in accordance with Measure 59.

49

Annual Report 2010
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



StUUNISADUAUIIAIASIYdOUNTUTU
wgEne Milfmoudndnysessuunismauauniely uarpszuinanednsasuaunalududaulsznaud Ay lunisanfinveu

YBILTEN Tmﬂiumiﬂi:ﬂ;uﬂmzmmmiﬁﬁmnm;ﬁ Isnuunliianse deldrniznssumsnmageulfuanspanuidiufaaiunay

WeWe wisnzansanisasuANniely wheansliaiauanuzaerhesanag L'W'faslﬁﬁmiuﬁlmLL@z/ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂﬂgaizuumimu@umﬂlu

Iiunzan eane
AIZNIINNNILTEM TAUsuiliumnuiieawanesyuLNIsALANNe Y wari A uILT AR LANIZNITNNNIATIARDLLN

Usnfszunnismuaunelufivanz e siai

1. NIALANATUBIANTUATANTNLIARENTBINITATLAN U??ﬂ/ﬂﬁﬂ’ﬁ‘fﬂx‘lLﬂﬂﬂm’mluﬂ’]iﬁ’uﬁu@iﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂL@u ANVIRANEA UAY
Sonald tnafinatuuaideiad nagns wazniareunuutlszanns felinesdunulianuaensiesuazussqiihmaned
ald u?ﬁwﬁ‘imm?mmﬁmﬁmmmwi@miﬁ%ﬁuqiﬁ@ Trainsfinuuaansaunistisduioan lilianudnaueasmvanzan
uazdinetuuaumumuazuihfeswineuduaasneniines Weliinnunaummuuaznssminfesuna uthil uag
ANTURATELURIAY Lﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬂé’ﬂﬂwmmmmLm‘:uﬁummmmm

2. mamuuiuisades Ui lEaaudAtyiunisuivsanaides Taalunnstszguaniznssunisyiin 188nns
5N wise ﬁmummmmimuamLL@mmmm@'mﬁ'm@Lﬁm'%u‘%amﬂﬁ@@”ﬂmﬂlmm:ﬁ@@"ﬂmﬂu@ﬂﬁﬁw deenadananszn
an1sussqitlvanalunisaniiugsna

3. meaauRNsuLfiRueeeLiung 15 lein Balanced Scorecard ml%l,ﬂul,ﬂ?imﬁ@iumi%@mnm:ﬁumﬁlaunmqwﬁ‘
Woiussqmnddenied wazn1InaTesesdins wazl#dainsasananaRnfiua (Key Performance Indicators — KPIs) lusziiche
WATILALILAAR W?@m%ﬂﬁﬁwLﬁumﬁmﬂi:"qmwdwﬁju?wwiLﬁﬂﬂizLﬁuw@ﬂﬂiﬁwLﬁu\‘nulmzﬁumﬁmmfzi:ﬁut]wmm"l,mmm
S Tdsmingdensfimou feldidunserlumetmsuuamenafrimaenliiuldeselssouasiilssananm
u@nmnﬁu‘?ﬁmﬁqﬁmﬂﬂumaﬂ@ﬂ”ﬁqm‘ﬁ'Lﬂumﬂﬁnmﬁnm 18 nsdvitedadng snnaayifoeiiu ieliAnAnunges
wardaaulunisdfjimam

4. mimuamﬁmizuummumﬁLL@zm@?ﬁj@mw u’?ﬁﬁwﬁmiﬁwmizuummumﬂl,l,@fzi:uu%g‘@mjwLoimfim Tnadnlidszuy
bTGHE waztesInsAeamenelusazmevenesdnsethelilsr@vanmuazlszAnine Wefacldlumesnaula ladaniu
%’@H@mqm?ﬁuﬁ@i@aﬂ@ﬁu Tneszuudnumsteansnieluti u‘?‘ﬁwimﬁﬁﬁmﬂmwmiﬁﬁﬁLﬂuﬁi@miﬁ%ﬁmmﬁﬁmwa way
Viwsaweni9nl InewinauynAulAFudeyatinnansiiuszuy Intranet 109131m zﬁw?mzuums%‘amiﬁuuﬂﬂw‘?@mﬁm
nevaniu u‘?‘ﬁmﬁ?zuumiﬁmﬁi@%‘@miﬁﬁmﬂﬁimﬂ@ I19anratihailtane SeszunasaumALazNsieansTe LSl
ANMNMNNzaNTuNIANINgIRA

5. MIALANAUIZLILNNTAAAIN LIHNI MU auazEun9A L §nNsfinnn uasi Fauiieunanisnfiney
iduldmaniisnefiiveethsasiiaue TnadnisdsrguanznssunisLinmn < 2 dlad Lﬁ@ﬁmmm@m@ﬂﬁﬁﬁmu
aeelnddn uazinnadsvguaniznssunisLdinetnales Uas 5 P51 iilRiansain Azl waztsziunadnilulinunagng
g LL@”LLmumumiéﬁﬁLﬁuﬁiﬁ@?{ﬁwumif’i whasriauAlaiignienafistu venanidmdilununasmageumelu
m‘wmmmqqm@um?ﬂgummmumﬂ BTN Lw@ﬂiwl,uuu,mmmmmmmm%@uimﬂm\mﬂﬂmmﬁmmimqqmu
mﬂuuﬂmmﬁmﬁimm@mmmmmmmimLuumusluﬂmmﬁm'1a‘ma:maruwmu’Luﬂqiﬂivﬂjmmmﬁummmwmﬂm\‘i

4 e~

SIYVIUSIYNISSIHINNU

a o 1 1 o o 1 < a v o a ¥ o 1 o ‘ﬂl a é’ =

Wi laifisanisszndnsiuluilaqiiu egnlsfinan visniulaualuniadinmenisssndaiunfisauluewiee Tnaazd

o dl ] v o o a % a 4’ = VY o dl a d’f o

mafuuaRenlasite Widuldaudnsouznisaniunisdung lusainaisdansanFauisuldtumanfisauiuyeana
nauan sl WEnagla lianiznssunismmaaey wiadaaulnTuesLsm viedduatnydass Ransannsagauuay AN
TNRAYNIMHNZANTBITIAN LATATTNANIAANNATEIN1INIENNIFE

Pen9szndaiufienafintulueuAntiu AnznssunsUiEmazsesl JuRlmduldaunguunaddaeudnninduay
aaauANnIne uardatisdu Usznia Ade vizedeiusvasnaiandnnindualssnalng saumnaentienisdfiRnudeninun
Wneaiunadamedeyanisiimanisianloaiy uaznislauvizaamihanindaundrAyaeszEnvzassdmtdas

v X = L e ae A aa a X o A = o 9 - Y a4 A

Vst wnfsnanessndneiuges dsnisedindesintuiuyarafinnalanndaudmnawatsslend ddoulfdoude viveana
fanudaudananatsslamiluanan Al flianznssunismmaasuiilugliaonuiunesiuanudniuiazanumanzas
299771801313U Tunstinanznssunsasaseulaidanudiunnglunisiansansanisssuieiunenaintiu isdmas LA de oy
daswvivedmeuninydvesuiEniiugiauwiuiaaiunansssuineiusanans el sznaunisdndulazesaniznsunis vise
fheviumuusinatl vistiusinazitlamesanisszuinsiullumnamnlssnausunistunlffunisnsmageuangasuiiny e sum

50

sweouds:oU 2553
USUN ada wSowiwosa sna (Uksu)



Internal Audit System
Company strongly focuses on internal control system and realizes that it is one of the main factors in operation. The agenda

of internal control is included in all company’s committee meeting so that audit committee can share perspective about sufficiency

and suitability of internal control, as well as suggest management to adapt and/or improve internal control system.
Company committees have evaluated sufficiency of internal control system and agreed with audit committees that company
has sufficient internal control system as follows;

1. Corporate control and environment — Company has clear, reasonable, and measurable business goals by setting vision,
strategies, and budget plan to align and achieve the goals. Its corporate structure is suitable for the business operation
as chain of command is clear and suitable. Roles and responsibilities of employee are identified in written form so that all
employees will understand and realize their duties and accountability and competently fulfill job requirements.

2. Risk management and control — Company highly focuses on risk management so this aspect is included in committees’
meeting for discussion and measures to control and minimize risks from both internal and external which affect business
goals.

8. Management operation control — Company applies Balanced Scorecard as the important tool to communicate and pursue
strategies in corresponds to corporate vision and mission. Key Performance Indicators — KPIs is set to measure performance
of departments and individuals. Executives have conducts several meetings to evaluate corporate and department
performance every quarter. Company also creates operating manual as a guideline to ensure systematic and efficient
operation. Moreover, company prepares written standard operating procedures to cove procurement, budget authorization
to facilitate flexible and solid operation.

4. Information technology and communication control — Company has continually developed information technology and data
system by setting effective and efficient data system and internal and external communication channel to facilitate decision
making in terms of financial or other relevant data. Company provides internal communication system by sharing sufficient
and updated news related to the jobs. Employees can receive information through intranet. Moreover, company provides
enough communication system to share information to external organizations.

5 Monitoring system control — Company specifies goals and operation plan, and monitors performance versus predetermined
goal by setting executive committees’ meeting every 2 weeks to evaluate performance closely. Company committees’
meeting will be conducted at least 5 times a year to analyze, evaluate performance against specified strategies, goals
and business plan, and provide solutions. Moreover, company has internal control department to monitor various aspects
of operation so as to evaluate and report directly to audit committees. Then audit committees will report performance to
company committee in every committee’s meeting.

Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, it has prepared policies that deal with such
transactions should they occur in the future. The conditions for related party transactions are determined so that they defer to
normal commercial practice at market prices, which may be compared with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties.
The Company will assign the Audit Committee, the corporate auditors, or independent experts to review the transactions and
provide their opinions as to the suitability of pricing and justification of such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock Exchange
Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore, compliance is required
with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant acquisition, or divestiture of securities
in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals having po-
tential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review and provide their
opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does not possess the expertise
to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent expert or the corporate auditors to
provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board of Directors’ or Shareholders, as may be the
case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in the Notes to the Financial Statements, which have been
duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Report of Good Corporate Governance

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an important factor to

lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of the company. To be in accordance

with the 2006 principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies set by the SET, the Company has implemented

the good corporate governance to be a practice guideline. The details of the policy are as follows:

1.

Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights to
purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the meeting to

vote at the shareholder’'s meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting period.
The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the shareholders
at least 14 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at least 3 consecutive
days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document posted on the website of
the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this case all shareholders shall have

enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well preparing for the meeting.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including location map
and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover, in the notice of
meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles of Association on the
Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be presented by shareholders
before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending the meeting in person and by proxy.
The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice letter as for the convenience of the shareholder
to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by the company on the meeting date for the convenience of the
proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the meeting, such shareholders can appoint any independent director to

vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date, time and
venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting to be held during
8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all shareholders. For the past
meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT station as for the convenience of the
shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders, the company shall open for registration at least
2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register and to

hold welcome reception for shareholders attending the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote on agenda

items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on individual
directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated for election
including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and the record of their meeting

attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to support their consideration in voting.
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At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their opinions
and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall provide sufficient time
for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management shall equally pay attention to
every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be recorded with total votes of each agenda.
The company issued and submitted the minutes of the meeting to Stock Exchange of Thailand and Ministry of Commerce
within 14 days as specified by law, and posted on company’s website for interested shareholders to read and examine

the information.

At the 2010 annual general meeting of shareholders, all of company directors, 8 persons, are attending the meeting.
These directors include Chairman, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and high level
management from each important department whereby these people are required to attend the meeting in order to answer

the inquiries of the shareholders.

Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive director or
non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting documents in both
Thai and English.

The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them
appoint other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting, the company
shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine their voting direction and
appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the postage at the registration area in

front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have not affix the postage.

For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained then the
shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the meeting. The voting
ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the disapproved votes or
abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so that the shareholders can vote
each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For this agenda, the shareholders can vote

for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from all shareholders.

The company also sets the policy that directors and the management shall not use the material internal
information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including buying/ selling
securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the management uses the
internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures are as follows:

. Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including those
securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment specified under
Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

0 Circulate the memo to directors and the management informing that directors and the management, who have
received the material internal information that may effect on the prices of the securities, shall avoid or temporarily stop
the purchase/ sale of the company’s securities for 1 month. Moreover, they shall not disclose material information
to other persons before the financial statement or such internal information has been disclosed to the public. In
order to monitor and examine the abovementioned operation, the company has set the policy that the management

shall report the holding securities and changes in securities as specified under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

55

Annual Report 2010
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



56

unuINFaNgAdUIAIAY

U liliannudn drysledviaesiidaulMdaynngu analunazniauenudim Tddrandu gnan goetiu gén gus

o

nafgiineades wineuw nsentivrnniuiaTeusedianuazannden inedadinliiinaandaniiefussndnandtm fu

vl v z’/ til/ Aﬂ. v aI/ A a IS = o Azgll
gndaulade Meilinea¥apnudstiuluszazantresianis Tnadsaaziannail

£

o

nA1 :

— e

Usmiianugsfulunsairennnuitanelaldiugnan feenisueunaninemaannw uarléunmsgiu naeafienis

ThiAnsftamnw il [ uiagul s e Sdnd, “hufilgnuuanuaslaiia’

2. usdniflanuseTulunieimunanninaesdudn Tnen Bl §dnliRdauamiAdananiusi iefnmanudeins
ABIGNAN LLmﬁﬂmﬁmmﬁuﬂgﬁ@mmwmmauﬁq@mmﬂLfim

3. wWEnlddnliinisnmanunintiuangiumsnetneinnu Tmﬂmimq'ﬁumu&uﬁmimuau %@mné’muamm
WnTATLANIIY AAINT WATEARNITIATINITANNBATIN AMNATAL uﬂnf«awnﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁu‘hlu@mmwﬂm s lianTi
7 QC nenviu lednAmaseuAmnNTLENda

4 deliBnmaannanefhilatnadilss@nannm Ll Esasanioeau Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Ty
Lﬁfﬂ@lmﬂfymﬁmj WifugnAn naeAaudnnanssusie] Tuiluusazlnssnsres i

5. u‘?‘ﬁmiﬁ%@msﬁumq@ﬂﬁq HA1MeTRNS Website 109131 sanflannsansmellasnaiiendeinapsnannaiaaenin

AABAAUNANTINANNT) fiLgnAN

v

BUU :

Q

— ex
- of

a o ] nl/ Aﬂ. o d‘d o v o =& K lﬂld a a g a o
Ui auyaiunazidudaununaesgiediu TnaAddaanauunuing waznisawsoyiulnluyarizessemly
Fe81z81N9 (Maximize Long Term Shareholder’s Wealth)

2. uildReansiugDeviu diunneteamnns Website 2891310 iaudetnansaanuiadeulmfid Aty uetsEm anfidu
eazi@en uavienanstsznaunisdntlszgngnaviu usiu
a o a) vy % o b3 =3 1 lﬂl o o a o [
3. uiimdalenialdigtedu uasinamu amisnasunindeyalutlsviiusine Nasdonndardm lidnaziunisyaee
unnatnadng vizanisaauninlunssgus

o o

1FEnAnIsai A NdINHesT Nl uazai A NANRUSAR LM et sieTias anfiviu Masandlaiugilunisuas

]
a ' v a

wasAiiudiantzaeesEm uaznisdniiafiunissuiasnidiadsine lunslddnmnendeiiasiugniessum
lusi

2. UrEndfiRdegA1nuReulauazdynymenisAtetiamnanzas InafininsgaulunisaiaiugAetensanan
A

a a

D

AUnF maandaaaniIuNn

AL :
a o a a wva a I o d’d 10 dl = 1 1 v v 1 v
1. WiinsdfiFeunseunfiniaesnisudeiuina ldinaedeidesaesguadamanisfgeanisnanounlunieie
2. uidndszneugsiadaaannuiuieandn Tlanfinanudy vieaassiaudunesguasianisdeas Inglunaendoana

A a0y Ny o P R e VA P
NHIUNT Ui‘HV]llﬁJNﬂJﬂWW'WIGLW] IuLiﬂ\WlLﬂF;I"Jﬂ'LI@LL‘]J\Wﬂ\‘m’]i‘W]

sweouds:oU 2553
USUN ada wSowiwosa sna (Uksu)



Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external

stakeholders e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including social and

environmental responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company and the stakeholders

in order to promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are shown as follows

Customers :

1.

The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with good quality
products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house with good willingness”.
The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research and
development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and continuously develop
quality of products.

The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall be conducted by
the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively. Moreover, to ensure the quality of
the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to inspect the quality of the houses.

To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship Management
(CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each project of the company.

The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly newsletter to

update the news and other activities to customers.

Shareholders :

1.

The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return and
maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the news of the
company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the telephone or

at the meeting.

Trading partners :

1.

The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading partners e.g
cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and cooperating with the

commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.

2. The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement. The company
has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.

Competitors :

1. The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the reputation of
the competitors with some negative accusation.

2. The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality or deception

to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no disputes with their competitors.
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Employees :

1. The company treats all employees equally and fairly by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe
benefits.

2. The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the Government
Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including some contribution money
in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, iliness, disaster to your home and funeral of the parents, child, partner
or employee.

3, The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the requirement and
develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge and capabilities. Apart from
the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company has specially designed the individual
development program for the high potential employees (star) to enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher
level and to become the management in the future.

4. The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in working place by organizing regular fire drills,

activities related to safety, 7S, and monthly maintenance for elevator in company’s building.

Community and Social :
1. The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has regularly involved
in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims, giving out the scholarships to

students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2010 are revealed under “Corporate social responsibility” section.

In case shareholders and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the company has established
a channel for them to contact, file complaints or provide information through the internal audit department at the address
below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according to the Company’s procedures and report

to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues found.

Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Linited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor, Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok 10240
Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 218 Fax: 0-2377-9656

Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the company,
including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely manner. The
company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes communicating with
the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release via the Stock Exchange of

Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail and website of the company.

The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering queries to
investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating performance from

the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited
222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor, Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok 10240
Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202 Fax: 0-2377-9656
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In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report along

with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the Executive

Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director in the past year.

Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and other benefits) of the

directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and the report 56-1.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

5.1

5.2

Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in various areas. The
Board is responsible for setting the vision, approval of the business direction, policy, strategy and goal of the company in
order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the annual business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key
performance indicators (KPIs) system is used to monitor the performance. In order to have a clear roles and responsibility,
the Board has set the clear roles and responsibilities of the Board, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and the managing
director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 8 persons. Of that amount, 4 of them are the directors who are the
management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management, 3 of them
are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than one-third of total directors,
this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and balancing the power of other directors.
Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person as the managing director as there should be a
segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting and the day-to-day operation shall be separated from
each other.

Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby currently there
are 8 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Each director has a
term of 2-3 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider the person with qualification
to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board can reelect the director who is released

from the post back to be the director.

Sub Committee

The company has established the Audit Committee whereby the term of directors is 2 years. Its roles and
responsibilities have been set clear and stated under the roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee under
the Section of Management.

The Board has not established the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The remunerations
set by the Board have been well considered whereby the Board has compared remunerations to those set by the
same industry. Such remunerations shall be approved by the shareholder meeting and the remunerations of the

management shall be in accordance with the principal and policy set by the Board.
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5.3

5.4

515

5.6

5.7

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for managing the company to be in accordance with the law, objectives, regulations
and the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. The Board shall consider and give an approval, including
develop the vision, mission, strategy and direction of operations, treasury, risk management. Moreover, the Board is
responsible for overseeing the management to efficiently and effectively operate under the policy set. Furthermore,
their responsibilities include protecting the interests of the shareholders and disclosing the correct and complete
information with standard and transparency.

The Board can assign and appoint the director to be the managing director to perform any business except
for those required by the law stating to have the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. For any issues
whereby the director or the person may have a conflict of interest, such directors shall waive their right to vote on

those issues.

The Board of Directors Meeting

The Board of Director Meeting shall be held regularly. The Chairman of the Board has encouraged the executives
to cautiously use their judgment and manage their time so that the executives can present the case and all directors
can cautiously discuss the case. As such, the notice of meeting, meeting agenda and the minute of the last meeting
shall be sent to the Board at least 7 days in advance so that the directors can study and read through the document
before the meeting has commenced. At each meeting, the minute shall be recorded and shall be approved by the
Board at the next meeting. In 2010, there were around 5 Board of Directors Meeting whereby the attendance details

of each directors are disclosed under the Remuneration of the Directors and Management.

Self-assessment of the Board
The company has the policy stating that the Board shall re-assess their performance annually so that the Board

can jointly consider the performance and problems in order to use those to improve their performance.

Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby these
remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall be approved
at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2010, the directors had the meeting allowances of THB
10,000 per meeting and the Audit Committee had the annual remunerations of THB 350,000 per person. For the
remunerations of the management, the management shall received the salary and bonus based on the performance
of the company and their individual performance. Details of the remunerations of the Management shall be disclosed

and presented under the Remunerations of Directors and Management.

Development of Directors and the Management

To assure shareholders and investors that directors are knowledgeable in carrying out their duties as a director
in accordance to good corporate governance principles, the company has encouraged the directors to continuously
train with the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). As for the management, the company has the policy to develop the

management of the company by encouraging them to pursue their further study in MBA and Mini-MBA, etc.
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Renovated school buildings damaged by flood.
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Installed new playground equipments for students
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Donated essential education instrument to rural schools
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Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSRs)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is always mindful that we are a part of society and conscious of our important
responsibility to society as well as the community. The Company therefore regularly organizes activities to benefit society and
has consistently done so throughout. This takes the form of educational assistance with the presentation of scholarships to
schoolchildren and students; monetary donations to various charities; donations of funds and necessities to victims of natural

disasters such as floods; and including holding community activities through the Company’s projects.
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Explanation on Operating Result and Analysis of Financial Status

In 2010, Lalin Property Public Company Limited earned net profit of 326,537,746.49 Baht, 31.15% higher than 248,979,252.29
Baht of 2009. The profit keeps growing for 3 years consecutively with the growth of 48.85% in 2008 and 39.20% in 2009

The influential factor of profit growth in 2010 is derived from increased sales volume; company gained overall sales of
1,692,624,965.00 Baht, 37.74% or 463,790,929.00 Baht higher than 1,228,834,036.00 Baht of 2009. Sales growth is influenced
by active management of the company in launching 6 new projects with overall value of 3,000 million Baht since the end of
2009 to end 2010 and revenue has been generated since 2009 onward. This expansion is still on company’s policy that focuses
on cautious growth. In doing so, company has consistently assessed internal and external risks both in Chairman Level and
Executive Chairman Level. In 2010, company has policy to turn around business and despite many project expansions;
financial status and liquidity of company are very strong with Debt to Equity Ratio (D/E Ratio) of 0.22 at the end of 2010. This
ratio is significantly low compared with industry average of 1.16, thus reflecting company’s capabilities to expand business in

the future without problems in terms of liquidity and sources of fund.

Regarding profitability ratio, company is capable of managing costs and shows better ratio than industry average. In
2010, gross profit margin is 40.37% with equal to 2009, SG&A/Sales ratio is 11.17%, improved from 12.91% of 2009. However,
government’'s measure to stimulate real estate sector was expired in 2010, including measure to reduce specific business tax
from 3.30% to 0.11%, which is expired on March 28th, 20010, measure to reduce ownership transfer fee from 2.00% to 0.01%,
and measure to reduce mortgage fee from 1.00% to 0.01% which is expired on June 30th, 2010. After expiration of those
measures, some customers delay purchase and overall sales in this industry declined during quarter 3rd of 2010. With these
factors, company has to pay specific business tax and ownership transfer fee of 44,112,562.00 Baht or 2.61% of sales, compared
with only 1,422,316.00 Baht or 0.12% of sales in 2009. This higher tax and fee result in decrease in operating profit margin and
net profit margin of 2010 to 27.31% and 19.10% respectively, versus 28.20% and 20.02% of 2009. However, these ratios are still

higher than overall industry average.

Regarding balance sheet as of December 31st, 2010, total assets are 4,628,740,221.81 Baht increased 254,373,607.45
Baht from last year. The amount is increased from assets account for 81,163,956.57 Baht and from shareholders’ accounts for
173,209,650.88 Baht. The main assets that are changed include 1. Inventory, increased by 540,955,019.07 Baht to 3,806,788,601.93
Baht due to new projects for business expansion in 2010, 2. Investment account in securities available for sales in which company
deposits cash in governmental fixed income fund to earn higher compensation, compared with commercial banks. The account
is decreased from 220,730,469.43 Baht to 71,116.753.02 Baht as company facilitates liquidity at the end of 2009 to support
business expansion based on the plan at the beginning of 2010. For debt account at the end of 2010, company bears debt of loan
for 518,473,959.53 Baht, higher by 8,759,022.51 Baht of 2009, or 1.72%. At the end of 2010, shareholder’'s account increased
by 173,209,650.88 Baht to 3,799,089,891.89 Baht, or 4.78%. In 2010, company paid dividend for 2 times to shareholders; May
21st, 2010, at the rate of 0.095 Baht per share, total 78,375,000.00 Baht (paid from the second half of 2009 operating results),
and September 10th, 2010, at the rate of 0.09 Baht per share, total 74,250,000.00 Baht (paid from the first half of 2010 operating
results). Therefore, total dividend paid in 2010 is 152,625,000.00 or 0.185 Baht per share.
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Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities to the
Financial Stafements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company
Limited, as well as the financial information presented in the 2010 Annual Report. These financial
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, using
appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent basis. Furthermore, cautious
judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation of the
statements. Every care is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the
Financial Statements, for the benefit of Shareholders as well as general investors and in the interests

of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system,
as well as a system of internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and
sufficiency of accounting information to maintain the Company’s assets. Moreover, this serves as

a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities of a significant nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality
of the financial statements, the internal audit report and including the system for risk management.
The recommendations of the Audit Committee in this regard are presented in the Report of the Audit

Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors,
Mr. Naris Saowalagsakul (Certified No. 5369) of S.K. Accountant Services Co., Ltd. As part of the
audit process, the Board of Directors determined the policy guidelines for management to provide
adequate supporting information and documentation, thereby allowing the auditors to conduct the
audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing standards. The auditors’ opinions are shown

in the Auditors’ Report section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal
control systems are of a satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that
the annual Financial Statements of Lalin Property Public Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2010 are credible and comply with generally accepted accounting standards, as well

as the relevant regulations.

(Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Managing Director

69

Annual Report 2010
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



SIIDIUVINACUNSSUMISOSOVaoU

Gou vinugiferiu U3 ada nSennesh 41fin ()
ADUENITNNITAIIRAEL Usznaudneuiagssns unuaingd ulssa1unssunisnimasey sa9AansIaNstiiimg ansszasd

wazweanan 1aauna unssunisnagey e 3 inulall AT edewineuses s
mmzﬂiiumima@mﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘mﬁqﬁmmjﬂ‘uL°nmm’hﬁ'Lmzmm%‘uﬁmanﬁiﬁ%umwmmmﬂmtmiumiﬂ%ﬁw fenanndes

Auderiinunresnasuanninduisszsndlne Tnalull 2553 ﬁmiﬂi:‘qu%\ﬁéu 5 s Tnanssunnanssageuynyinudndanysvgu

AILEY vmm%q uazlinenuransauusannznssunsEEulsramnlasng LL@fzmiﬂizﬂ;ulumqm%ﬂﬁuﬁ@ﬁmﬂmu‘?ﬁmi

Haeutinyd uavfnsasauniely %qmiﬂizfgunﬂm;"\a AnszNITNNIsRIaaellianeau Lanspuiuas Iideaue LUz atinBay

fanszdndyagullaaail

1. seumuwsuniaiumglasnanazeunisSulszdnd 2553 Genunnsaeumiuuazamageuangaayind Imﬁlmmumu
Faauinduargisug dﬁ"lﬁﬁma‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁmwﬁnmiﬂ’m%ﬁ' Susaavialyl fnalamadeyaatiaiemne maRaRanIINuAL
FUNIILUHUNNIATIRABLUATHANIIATIAABL LR ADLILTTYT %ﬂm\ﬂ,mmmuﬂixﬁ;mnu@muumﬂmﬁiumwmmi UM
1 p&s FapnuznasumenmaseUiuin TesumeRuileuasda QnFied edleli Lmzﬁmiﬁ]mLmﬂﬁmﬂ@ﬁzﬁqﬁm@ﬂmﬁmwa

2. meuvuszLUNIALANIE LAZNIRIANLIRE Lﬁ@ﬂixmumwmmwrﬂ winzan Usransnatesszuunisasuanniely
LAZNTLEVIANLIREN Imﬂié’ﬂinﬁummLﬁmwmmiwumimu@umﬂlumuLmeqﬁ'ﬁmum‘imm‘hﬁmmmmzﬂﬁumi
Afunanninduaznatavannine §UW\1ﬁﬂ%m\amnﬁmuﬂm%Lﬁmﬁmmumimmumﬂiu manslduanspraiuuaz
LmﬂLﬂmummm@mmmnummmwmmwm@mm‘um@mwmmmmwnﬁumimwLﬂuﬂivmwnvlmmmmmmme
fennignszunanmageuRaTiuiy mwmvuumimumumﬂ‘l,ulmvmmLL@mﬂfmumwmmmmmmu WWene uay
HulsvAndua

3. zﬁ@umumiﬂﬁﬁﬁmmﬂgummﬁé’w’qwﬁﬂm"mﬂmzmmWﬁnwé‘wﬂ’%ﬁwummmmwﬁﬂﬁwﬁtmzﬂgumﬂﬁLﬁmf*ﬁmﬁu
gsna1eeLium lnaneuvunglilnunmssageunialu fvualffuisasiiag ﬁmmq@mu‘luwmvummﬁ dninnismeaagey
mmvnﬁummmmuiuwum@mﬁnmm‘mmmw m'amwafmwuuﬂmwmmmnumﬂuﬂgummmﬂmuum WAZ/YTANGUNE
fliAendas LL@W"Luwmmmiwmﬂwmmmﬂm%ﬂﬂmawmm‘ﬂmﬂu MT@?’]HH’]TW@’WNWJ’]N%@LL?NV]NN@TJ?”T?;I‘T]‘LA

4. miuguanunsageunely m@m@ummnum?ﬂ@ ToLLIANTLIRY stfinnusufiogen uazaraiudasy el
ﬂ@ymumiﬂgummuﬂimmmmmumuuumumumﬂlummﬂmL‘wm‘wam‘uu TaglAfinsUsrgusaniuLnunAgIaaay
agatierlnsnnasy 1 A% meummmmmmw@uwaf@mﬂumLmu@LLuy‘wL'ﬂuﬂay‘lﬁmu‘iumsﬂiuﬂ@amafﬂgumwum@
waunmeagaumelunazihedanig paesauiaenNLHLURTAgeLz$T Tennznssunenmageuianaiudi sz
mansaaaunelusesiEniulietndase iaane uaviidssdnsug mu%\iﬁmﬂﬁmm@mﬂﬁwm?mm@muﬁqﬁmmmm
uaznslfdRaunTasay

5 menunanstiRnuresrnznssunimnsaasuliiuamznssunisiidmauynlasng e lduanspndiueasdamieuus
il lemiFaniaiimssuresdiedanig %'\‘1ﬂw@”mm{lﬁéﬂLﬁum?ﬂﬁ*uﬂgmﬁ”lmmmi@ T FITEA E KIRY F AP

6. WaaARAAeN Lmumwiqr%\‘iéimuﬁzﬁ Uszant] 2554 Tnafiansauuan1sUfimeu audlugass wazpNINIZaNTed
ANFIRLLNUINULENNIABLLTTYT iethiauesennznssINILTN sLﬁmﬂméﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁﬂ?:ﬁwgﬁ@ﬁ:u FepmuznITunsAmaday

o

Iaueusanaunagang srueddanl daeutindiueyn nani 4663 veuneananssoyn wiswies daeutydiueynnae
7l 4387 vidouneniie @naanEiana é@@uﬁm%%uwmmmﬁ 5369 ULWILFEN 1oa.1A.LaAAiws imefidiaa a1rin 1y
faeurnydresimlszant 2554 efldrnauumailudiuouiu 658,500 1 seldEnanszuiis
Aruznssunanaradey IWfTRnumamiuazanasulateuitldfunenuung Tasldaanag armaanan wasiiaanudy

Baszednunane Tagliidedninlunislaiudayauasziinanuiind WEniinsmaanudeyanianisluuaznisanitueuetng

Qnéfesuaziangan TuTiszunnsmuAunEly MemmageuntluLaz IR eA IR vanza Weme $n1el iR

b o b7 o ' D o o o a dltal 1 = ] tﬁl A 4 a
pnnguang dariivunuardeyniiusine naenaudadinuasimunisiniuguaianisinedraiieane Tsela wetield wuaziinng
WU gessuunisd fuRauldiannmatuedesieitia

(W8T WNUADAED)

1/9£871UNIINNNIAIIREDL
70

sweouds:oU 2553
USUN ada wSowiwosa sna (Uksu)



Report of Audit Committees

To shareholders of Lalin Property Public Company Limited

Audit committees consist of Mr. Suvarn Thansathit, Chair of Committee, Assoc. Prof. Nipath Jitaprasong, and Mr. Satit

Chanjavanakul. These 3 committees are neither company executives nor employees.

Audit committees have worked based on scope of roles and responsibilities as identified by company committees, in

correspond to regulations of Stock Exchange of Thailand. There are 5 meetings in 2010 in which all audit committees have

attended all meeting and prepared performance reports to company committee every quarter. Executives, auditors, and internal

auditors have involved in discussion in all meetings. Audit committees have reported, shared ideas and independently provided

recommendation. Details are summarized as follows;

1.

Monitor quarterly and yearly financial statements 2010 as inspected by auditors. Auditors and management team shared that
the processes are aligned with common financial procedures. Data are sufficiently shared and management acknowledges
monitoring results from auditors. Auditors have participated 1 meeting without management involved and concluded that
financial reports are complete, accurate, reliable, and transparent with sufficient data.

Monitor internal control system and risk management to assess sufficiency, suitability, and effectiveness of internal control
system and risk management. Auditors evaluate sufficiency of internal control system as identified by Stock Exchange
Commission, gather information from auditors regarding internal control, and exchange ideas and opinions with company
committees about risks that affect company on quarterly basis. Audit committees agree that company has sufficient,
suitable, and effective internal control system and risk management.

Monitor compliance with securities and Stock Exchange legal, regulations of Stock Exchange, and laws related to
company’s businesses. Internal control department is assigned to monitor all related operating systems. Audit
committees see no relevant information to believe that there are significant regulation violation and/or related laws. There
are no associated business transactions or businesses that show conflict of interest.

Supervise internal control in terms of missions, operation scope, responsibilities, and freedom to facilitate efficient
operating processes and organized internal control system. Auditors have meeting with audit department at least once a
quarter to acknowledge audit results and provide useful recommendations for further improvement in internal control and
administration departments, as well as verify annual internal control plan. Audit committees shared opinion that company’s
internal control system is independent, sufficient, and effective. Audit quality in terms of people and processes are improved.
Report audit results of audit committees to company committees every quarter and share useful opinions and
recommendations in that administration department will improve accordingly.

Recruit and appoint auditors as of 2011 by considering performance, independence and suitability of audit fee, and
propose to company committees in shareholders’ meeting for approval. Audit committees have appointed Mr. Amphol
Jamnongwat, registration number 4663 or Ms. Wanya Puthasathian, registration number 4387 or Mr. Narit Saowalaksakul,
registration number 5369 or S.K. Accountant Services Co., Ltd. to be company auditor as of 2011, with compensation of
658,500 Baht.

Audit committees have worked with knowledge, capabilities, and freedom based on assign roles and responsibilities

receiving data without any restriction. Audit committees share that company provides accurate and suitable financial and

operation reports, organizes appropriate and sufficient internal control system, internal audit, and risk management that comply

with the laws, regulations, and obligations. Moreover, company also supports and improves corporate administration in sufficient,

transparent, and reliable manner, and continually improves operating system to ensure consistent quality.

(Mr. Suvarn Tansathit)

Chairman of Audit Committees
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Audit Report of Certitied Public Accountant

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the balance sheets as of December 31, 2010, the statements of income, the statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the statements of cash flow for the years then ended of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of
the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. The financial state-
ments for the year ended December 31, 2009 of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED audited by another auditor in
the same firm, who gave an unqualified report there on dated on February 22, 2010.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any significant misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluat-

ing the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positions of
LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as of December 31, 2010, the results of its operations and cash flows for the

years then ended, respectively in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

S.K. ACCOUNTANT SERVICES COMPANY LIMITED.

(Naris Saowalagsakul)
Authorized Auditor No. 5369

Bangkok
February 21, 2011
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BALANCE SHEETS

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalent Items
Trade Accounts and Notes Receivable-Net
Inventories-Net
Other Current Assets-Net
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in Securities Available for Sale-Net
Property, Plant and Equipment-Net
Land Held to Development
Intangible Assets-Net
Other Non-Current Assets-Net
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

(Note 10)
(Note 11)

(Note 12)
(Note 13)

3,576,109.08
8,962,863.00
3,806,788,601.93
51,758,251.77

2,070,507.63
6,153,071.00
3,265,833,5682.86
45,241,019.89

3,871,080,825.78

3,319,298,181.38

71,116,753.02
84,764,596.84
576,789,079.42
251,150.28
24,737,816.47
757,659,396.03

291,847,222.45
73,075,031.90
664,118,605.92
26,027,572.71
1,055,068,432.98

4,628,740,221.81

4,374,366,614.36
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4,273,959.53
22,227,599.45
11,000,000.00

4,691,747.00
44,185,986.33
40,342,385.73
174,551,911.84
25,276,740.04

9,413,937.02
22,212,610.80
201,000.00

5,851,600.00
49,777,330.96
46,403,841.07
103,406,408.28
11,119,645.22

326,450,329.92 248,386,373.35
503,200,000.00 500,100,000.00
503,200,000.00 500,100,000.00
829,650,329.92 748,486,373.35
925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94
39,008.22

92,500,000.00
2,382,335,356.73

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94
853,122.16

92,500,000.00
2,208,311,591.91

3,799,089,891.89

3,625,880,241.01

4,628,740,221.81

4,374,366,614.36
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BALANCE SHEETS (Continue)

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft
Trade Accounts and Notes Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Loans
Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Corporate Income Tax
Accrued Expenses
Estimate Accrued for Construction Free of Utilities of Project
Other
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term Loans-Net
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary shares @ Baht 1.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
825,000,000 Ordinary shares @ Baht 1.00
Premiums on Share Capital
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Securities Available for Sale
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve
Unappropriated
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Note 14)

(Note 14, 16)

(Note 15)

(Note 14, 16)

(Note 17)

(Note 10)

4,273,959.53
22,227,599.45
11,000,000.00

4,691,747.00
44,185,986.33
40,342,385.73
174,651,911.84
25,276,740.04

9,413,937.02
22,212,610.80
201,000.00

5,851,600.00
49,777,330.96
46,403,841.07
103,406,408.28
11,119,645.22

326,450,329.92

248,386,373.35

503,200,000.00
503,200,000.00

500,100,000.00
500,100,000.00

829,650,329.92

748,486,373.35

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94
39,008.22

92,500,000.00
2,382,335,356.73
3,799,089,891.89

825,000,000.00
499,215,526.94
853,122.16

92,500,000.00
2,208,311,591.91
3,625,880,241.01

4,628,740,221.81

4,374,366,614.36
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1,692,624,965.00
(1,009,271,840.84)

1,228,834,036.00
(732,754,846.63)

683,353,124.16
16,761,673.12

496,079,189.37
14,553,665.80

700,114,797.28
(102,934,917.22
(61,783,123.35

(24,375,552.00

510,632,855.17
(76,133,364.06)
(58,435,884.34

(1,422,316.00
(24,037,787.00

)
)
(44,112,562.00)
)
)

(233,206,154.57

)
)
)
)

(160,029,351.40

466,908,642.71
(20,767,392.08)

350,603,503.77
(16,197,872.46)

446,141,250.63
(119,603,504.14)

334,405,631.31
(85,426,379.02)

326,537,746.49 248,979,252.29
0.40 0.30
825,000,000 825,000,000
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
For the Years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009

Sale

Cost of Sales

GROSS PROFIT

Other Income

PROFIT BEFORE EXPENSES

Selling Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Specific Business Tax and Transfer Charges
Management Benefit Expenses (Note 20)

Total Expenses

PROFIT BEFORE FINANCIAL COST AND CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Financial Cost (Note 21)
PROFIT BEFORE CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Corporate Income Tax (Note 22)

NET PROFIT

1,692,624,965.00

(1,009,271,840.84)

1,228,834,036.00
(732,754,846.63)

683,353,124.16
16,761,673.12

496,079,189.37
14,553,665.80

700,114,797.28

(102,934,917.22)
(61,783,123.35)
(44,112,562.00)
(24,375,552.00)

510,632,855.17
(76,133,364.06
(58,435,884.34

(24,037,787.00

(233,206,154.57)

)
)
(1,422,316.00)
)
)

(160,029,351.40

466,908,642.71
(20,767,392.08)

350,603,503.77
(16,197,872.46)

446,141,250.63
(119,603,504.14)

334,405,631.31
(85,426,379.02)

326,537,746.49

248,979,252.29

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 0.40 0.30
ORDINARY SHARES (Share) 825,000,000 825,000,000
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446,141,250.63

133,400.00
(22,901.17)
(2,000.00)
11,800,248.12
19,262.26
(1,503,134.82)
(3,791,979.05)
98,869.27
105,364.69
961,659,024.14
(83,451.54)
20,722,877.08

334,405,631.31

390,575.00

10,106,501.50
(1,589,787.16)
(155,735.58)
26,044.91
3,590,495.02
654,991,450.82
(144,358.15)
15,862,221.82

1,435,276,829.61
(2,943,192.00)
(1,004,432,263.45)
(6,710,231.88)
(18,412,643.76)
14,988.65
(1,259,853.00)
(6,061,455.34)
71,145,503.56
14,143,511.85

480,761,194.24

1,017,483,039.49
(5,097,728.57)
(477,833,053.26)
(13,826,032.38)
(21,693,285.37)
7,366,764.28
3,181,600.00
20,075,062.03
31,812,201.87
4,635,275.31
566,103,843.40

83,451.54 144,358.15
(8,375,452.09) (665,863.02)
(125,194,848.77) (59,993,801.41)
347,274,344.92 505,588,537.12
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
For the Years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Corparate Income Tax
Adjustment to Profit Before Corporate Income Tax for Cash Received
(Paid) from Operations Doubtful Debts-Trade Accounts Receiveable
Allowance-Deferred Utilities (Reverse)
Allowance-Advance Payment (Reverse)
Depreciation
Amortization of Intangible Assets
(Profit) Loss from Sale of Securities Available for Sale
(Profit) Loss from Sale of Fixed Assets
Written off Fixed Assets Dilapidation
Written off Fixed Assets Lost
Inventories Decrease from Transfer to Cost of Sales
Interest Income
Interest Expenses
Profit (Loss) from Operating Activities before
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Trade Accounts and Notes Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) Decrease in Other Current Assets
(Increase) Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Trade Accounts and Notes Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expense

Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Cash Received (Payment) from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Interest Income
Cash Payment for Interest Expenses Recorded as Cost of Inventories
Cash Payment for Corporate Income Tax and Withholding Income Tax

Cash Received (Used) from Operating Activities-Net

Increase (Decrease) in Estimate Accrued for Construction Free of Utilities of Project

446,141,250.63

133,400.00
(22,901.17)
(2,000.00)
11,800,248.12
19,262.26
(1,503,134.82)
(3,791,979.05)
98,869.27
105,364.69
961,659,024.14
(83,451.54)
20,722,877.08

334,405,631.31

390,575.00

10,106,501.50
(1,589,787.16)
(155,735.58)
26,044.91
3,590,495.02
654,991,450.82
(144,358.15)
15,862,221.82

1,435,276,829.61
(2,943,192.00)
(1,004,432,263.45)
(6,710,231.88)
(18,412,643.76)
14,988.65
(1,259,853.00)
(6,061,455.34)
71,145,503.56
14,143,511.85
480,761,194.24
83,451.54
(8,375,452.09)
(125,194,848.77)

1,017,483,039.49
(5,097,728.57)
(477,833,053.26)
(13,826,032.38)
(21,693,285.37)
7,366,764.28
3,181,600.00
20,075,062.03
31,812,201.87
4,635,275.31
566,103,843.40
144,358.15
(665,863.02)
(59,993,801.41)

347,274,344.92

505,588,537.12
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(544,999,913.27) | (751,000,000.00)
766,419,403.58 485,000,000.00
(23,794,267.97) (5,556,598.40)

3,792,000.00 180,000.00

(382,451,300.00) | (499,407,937.50)

(270,412.54) -
(181,304,490.20) | (770,784,535.90)
(5,139,977.49) 2,049,296.58

150,000,000.00
(150,000,000.00)
65,000,000.00
(51,101,000.00)
(20,722,877.08)
(152,500,398.70)

350,000,000.00
(100,000.00)

(15,862,221.82)

(70,107,921.15)

(MN2ILUE 6)

(MuNEILue) 6)

(164,464,253.27) 265,979,153.61
1,505,601.45 783,154.83
2,070,507.63 1,287,352.80
3,576,109.08 2,070,507.63
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW (Continue)

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
For the Years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Payment for Purchase of Investment in Securities Available for Sale
Cash Received from Sale of Investment in Securities Available for Sale
Cash Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets
Cash Received from Sale of Fixed Assets
Cash Payment for Purchase Land Held to Development
Cash Payment for Intangible Assets
Cash Received (Used) from Investing Activities-Net
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Bank Overdraft
Cash Received from Short-term Loans from Financial Institutions
Cash Payment for Short-term Loans from Financial Institutions
Cash Received from Long-term Loans
Cash Payment for Long-term Loans
Cash Payment for Interest Expenses

Cash Payment for Dividends

(544,999,913.27)
766,419,403.58
(23,794,267.97)

(751,000,000.00)
485,000,000.00
(5,556,598.40)

3,792,000.00 180,000.00
(382,451,300.00) |  (499,407,937.50)
(270,412.54) e
(181,304,490.20) |  (770,784,535.90)
(5,139,977.49) 2,049,296.58

150,000,000.00
(150,000,000.00)

65,000,000.00
(51,101,000.00)
(20,722,877.08)
(152,500,398.70)

350,000,000.00
(100,000.00)

(15,862,221.82)

(70,107,921.15)

Cash Received (Used) from Financing Activities-Net (164,464,253.27) 265,979,153.61
Cash and Cash Equivalent Increase (Decrease)-Net 1,505,601.45 783,154.83
Cash and Cash Equivalent at Beginning of the Period (Note 6) 2,070,507.63 1,287,352.80
Cash and Cash Equivalent at Ending of the Period (Note 6) 3,576,109.08 2,070,507.63
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009

1. General Information
The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity on November 8, 1988,
registration number 8781/2531 and convert to The Public Company Limited held on September 3, 2002, new registration
number 0107545000233. It is registered office located at 222/2 Srinakharin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok. Its
principal activity is property development for sales.

2. Basis of Financial Statements

2.1 The Company had prepared the financial statements in accordance with Thai Accounting Standard including related
interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions, applicable rules and regula-
tions of the Securities and Exchange Commission and with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand.

2.2 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the ac-
counting policies.

2.3 Inorder to prepare the financial statements to comply with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company’s
management had to make some estimates and assumptions which may have an effect on the amount shown for
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and also on the disclosures concerning assets and contingent liabilities,
therefore the actual result may differ form the estimated amount.

2.4 For the convenience of the user, an English translation of the financial statements has been prepared from the financial
statements that are issued in Thai language.

2.5 The financial statements as presented herein for comparative purpose have been reclassified to conform with the
current period’s classifications with on effect on the net profit or shareholder’s equity as previously reported was as
follows:

As of December 31, 2009

Baht

Balance Sheets

Inventories-Net Decrease (24,250.00)
Property, Plant and Equipment-Net Increase 24,250.00
Current Portion of Long-Term Loans Increase 201,000.00
Accrued Expenses Decrease (46,639,701.26)
Estimate Accrued for Construction Free of Utilities of Project Increase 103,406,408.28
Other Current Liabilities Decrease (56,766,707.02)
Long-term Loans-Net Decrease (201,000.00)

For the years ended on
December 31, 2009

Baht

Statements of Income

Cost of Sales Increase (10,780,714.98)
Administrative Expenses Decrease 10,516,932.98
Financial Cost Decrease 263,782.00

3. Adoption of New Accounting Standards, Financial Reporting Standards and
Interpretation
The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 17/2010 and No. 50 to No. 55/2010, regarding
new accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretation. These are not effective for the current year,
except Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, which was effective immediately.
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Effective date

Framework for Preparation and Presentation Immediately
of Financial Statements (revised 2009)
TAS 1 (revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements January 1, 2011
TAS 2 (revised 2009) Inventories January 1, 2011
TAS 7 (revised 2009) Statement of Cash Flows January 1, 2011
TAS 8 (revised 2009) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates | January 1, 2011
and Errors
TAS 10 (revised 2009) Events After the Reporting Period January 1, 2011
TAS 11 (revised 2009) Construction Contracts January 1, 2011
TAS 12 Income Taxes January 1, 2013
TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment January 1, 2011
TAS 17 (revised 2009) Leases January 1, 2011
TAS 18 (revised 2009) Revenue January 1, 2011
TAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1, 2011
TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of | January 1, 2013
Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates January 1, 2013
TAS 23 (revised 2009) Borrowing Costs January 1, 2011
TAS 24 (revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures January 1, 2011
TAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans | January 1, 2011
TAS 27 (revised 2009) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements January 1, 2011
TAS 28 (revised 2009) Investments in Associates January 1, 2011
TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies January 1, 2011
TAS 31 (revised 2009) Interests in Joint Venture January 1, 2011
TAS 33 (revised 2009) Earnings per Share January 1, 2011
TAS 34 (revised 2009) Interim Financial Reporting January 1, 2011
TAS 36 (revised 2009) Impairment of Assets January 1, 2011
TAS 37 (revised 2009) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets | January 1, 2011
TAS 38 (revised 2009) Intangible Assets January 1, 2011
TAS 40 (revised 2009) Investment Property January 1, 2011
TFRS 2 Share-based Payment January 1, 2011
TFRS 3 (revised 2009) Business Combinations January 1, 2011
TFRS 5 (revised 2009) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued | January 1, 2011
Operations
TFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources January 1, 2011
Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate January 1, 2011

The management of the Company has assessed the effects of new accounting standards, financial reporting
standards and interpretation and believes that these standards will not have any significant impact on the financial statements
for the year in which they are initially applied. Except, the TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the management of the Company has
been evaluating for the contingent liabilities from Retirement Benefit Plans.

Significant Accounting Policy
4.1 Recognition of revenues
The Company are recognized as revenue from sales of land and houses when the ownership is respectively
transferred and all payments have been received from the buyers.
4.2 Recognition of cost
The Company are recognized cost of land and house, the Company allocates cost of the entire development
anticipated to incur of each project (considering actual cost) to land plus house add in accordance with selling area
of each project and recognized as cost of goods sold in percentage of sold area of each project.
4.3 Cash and cash equivalent items
Cash and cash equivalent items include bank deposit in type of saving, current and not exceeding three — month
fixed deposit with no guarantee obligation.
4.4  Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts
Accounts receivable are stated at the net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the
estimated collection losses that may incur in collection of receivable. 89
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Inventories

Inventories to perform in accordance with cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Inventory is composed
of land, land development fee, various public utility, construction fee and related loan interest.
Investment in securities available for sale

Investment is investment units in marketable security which the Company regards as available for sale
securities reflected according to fair value. The fair value of investment units is the price announced from the fund as of the
balance sheet. The Company recognized the change of value as separate transactions in the caption of shareholders’
equity in balance sheets and will be recorded in the statements of income when the Company disposed such
investment or the value of investment impairment.
Property, plant and equipment

Property are recorded at cost on date the transaction occur, Plant and equipment are recorded at cost on date
the transaction occur after deduction of accumulated depreciation and depreciations are calculated on a straight-line
method based on their approximate useful-life as follows:

Office Building 20 Years
Sale Office Building 5 Years
Container 5 Years
Central Utilities, Clubhouses Building, Garden and Children Playing Yard 5 Years
Vehicles 5,10 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Office Equipment 3,5 Years
Computer Network and Call Center 5 Years

For central utility, clubhouses building, garden and children playing yard which were built before the Land
Allotment Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable. The Company will record as part of property, plant and equipment. On
behalf of central utility, clubhouses building, garden and children playing yard which were built after the Land
Allotment Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable and the company intended to was as public service, the Company will
record as part of inventory and will write off as cost of goods sold in proportion to selling area of each project.

The Company did not carry depreciation for land and asset being construction.

Expenditure in respect of extension, life renewal or asset improvement which causes the present replacement
price increased materially. It will combine as cost of asset. Regarding repairing fee and maintenance, it is recognized
as expense in the incurred accounting period.

Gain or loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from discrepancy between net cash
received and book value and recognized as other revenue or other expense in the statement of income.

Land held to development

Land held to development are recorded at cost on date the transaction occur after deduction of allowance for
Impairment (if any).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or development of each project
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The Company will
record to deferred interest and present as a part of inventories of each project. The Company will cease the record
when the project is complete or sold or faced with problem of delay while the proceeding of further development
incurs. For the interest incurred from loan to acquire land pending for development but not yet developed. The
Company will record such interest expense as expense in the statement of income.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognize, if assets exceed its recoverable amount, the Company will recognize an impairment
loss in the statement of income.

Calculation of recoverable amount

- The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset
that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Reversals of impairment

- An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

- An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. All reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income.

4.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible asset comprise cost of computer software which the Company acquired is stated at historical cost
less accumulated amortization and allowance of impairment (if any) and software is amortized on the straight-line
method over its useful live of 5 - 10 years.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an intangible asset is added to the carrying value of the asset only when
it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other subsequent
expenditure is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

4.12 Financial instruments

Financial instruments, financial assets were show in balance sheet composed of cash and cash at banks,
investments, accounts receivable. Financial liabilities were shown in balance sheets composed of accounts payable
and borrowings. The accounting policy of each items would be disclosed in separated items.

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

4.14 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the period by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares held by outside shareholders outstanding during the period.

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing net profit for the year by aggregate amount of weighted
average number of common stocks issued during the year and the weighted average number of common stock
which the Company may have to issue for conversion of the whole of warrants to common stocks.

4.15 The appropriation of retained earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act 2535 (1992). The Company

will appropriate retained earnings when it is approved at the shareholders’ meeting.
4.16 Employees Benefit

The Company is recognized salary, wage, bonus, social security fund and staff provident fund are expense

on date the transaction occur.

5. Non-Cash Flow Iltem

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Transfer Land Held to Development to Work in Develop 469,780,826.50 220,249,717.59
Transfer Deposit to Work in Develop 19,702,400.00 -
Transfer Deposit to Land Held to Development - 1,458,000.00
Transfer Furniture to Finished Goods 100,200.00 -
Transfer Advance Payment to Work in Develop 200,000.00 -

6. Cash and Cash Equivalent Items

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Cash 1,654,134.12 1,455,548.30
Current Deposit Account 1,786,015.70 71,359.36
Saving Deposit Account 135,959.26 543,599.97
Total 3,576,109.08 2,070,507.63
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7. Trade Accounts and Notes Receivable-Net

Consist of:

As of

December 31, 2010
Baht

As of
December 31, 2009
Baht

Notes Receivable
Trade Accounts Receivable

Within due

Over due 1 — 3 months

Over due 3 — 12 months

Over due more than 12 months
Total
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt
Net

7,944,000.00

523,959.00
335,305.00
159,599.00
1,827,296.00
10,790,159.00
(1,827,296.00)
8,962,863.00

4,843,000.00

1,024,940.00
180,331.00
104,800.00
1,693,896.00
7,846,967.00
(1,693,896.00)
6,153,071.00

For the years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009, allowance for doubtful debt-trade accounts receivable has move-

ment as follows:

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010
Baht

December 31, 2009
Baht

Allowance for Doubtful Debt - Beginning

Add Increase during the Period
Allowance for Doubtful Debt - Ending

(1,693,896.00)
(133,400.00)
(1,827,296.00)

(1,303,321.00)
(390,575.00)
(1,693,896.00)

Subsequent Event, the Company receives from trade accounts and notes receivable as of December 31, 2010 by

amount of Baht 0.11 million and Baht 7.94 million respectively.

8. Inventories-Net
Consist of:

As of

December 31, 2010
Baht

As of
December 31, 2009
Baht

Finished Goods
Demonstration for Sale
Land and House

Work-in-Develop
Land
Construction
Deferred Interest

163,614,169.46
259,658,416.73

990,471,674.52
1,010,751,945.59
38,201,113.67

180,475,912.81
295,070,991.45

721,226,592.76
885,397,595.58
35,567,466.08

Deferred Land Development 351,840,313.29 272,829,452.21
Deferred Utilities 955,756,027.24 847,260,040.49
Work in process-Furniture 36,577,752.05 28,111,243.27
Total 3,806,871,412.55 3,265,939,294.65
Less Allowance from Deferred Utilities (82,810.62) (105,711.79)
Net 3,806,788,601.93 3,265,833,582.86
98
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For the years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009, allowance from deferred utilities has movement as follows:

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Allowance from Deferred Utilities - Beginning (105,711.79) (105,711.79)
Add Sale during the Period 22,901.17 =
Allowance from Deferred Utilities - Ending (82,810.62) (105,711.79)

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, land and construction were mortgaged as collateral against credit which have
the net book value of which was now in amount of Baht 1,678.23 million and Baht 1,447.24 million respectively, were
mortgaged as collateral against credit from commercial bank as in Note 14 and 16.

9. Other Current Assets-Net

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Baht Baht
Prepaid Expenses 27,383,359.09 16,414,300.13
Advance Payment 9,328,707.09 5,849,970.46
Deposits for Construction Supplies 6,202,478.56 19,819,621.58
Others 8,853,519.27 3,173,939.96
Total 51,768,064.01 45,257,832.13
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt-Advance Payment (14,812.24) (16,812.24)
Net 51,753,251.77 45,241,019.89

10. Investment in Securities Available for Sale-Net

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Bualuang Thanatavee Open Fund 71,077,744.80 290,994,100.29
Add Unrealized Gain 39,008.22 853,122.16
Net 71,116,753.02 291,847,222.45

For the years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009, investment in securities available for sale has movement as follows:

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Beginning Book Value - Net 291,847,222.45 23,407,186.47
Purchase during the Period 544,999,913.27 751,000,000.00
Sales during the Period (764,916,268.76) (483,410,212.84)
Total 71,930,866.96 290,996,973.63
Changes in Fair Value (814,113.94) 850,248.82
Ending Book Value - Net 71,116,753.02 291,847,222.45
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Consist of :

Cost

Land

Building

Building-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool
Office Equipment

Office Furniture

Vehicles

Computer Network and Call Center
Total Cost

Accumulated Depreciation:

Building

Building-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool
Office Equipment

Office Furniture

Vehicles

Computer Network and Call Center
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment - net
Depreciation

For the years ended on December 31, 2010
Forthe years ended on December 31, 2009

11. Property, Plant and Equipment-Net

As of
December 31,

2009
Baht

41,327,681.29
29,278,827.77
10,457,064.40
20,073,714.38
44,119,757.94
59,665,191.00
4,863,416.11
209,785,652.89

Purchase

2,644,847.97
87,100.00
21,062,320.00

23,794,267.97

(279,144.92)
(6,187,550.37)
(10,853,000.00)

(17,319,695.29)

As of
December 31,
2010

Baht

41,327,681.29
29,278,827.77
10,457,064.40
22,439,417.43
38,019,307.57
69,874,511.00
4,863,416.11
216,260,225.57

(23,780,094.84)
(10,441,296.93)
(16,745,757.02)
(43,982,323.07)
(37,662,567.18)

)

)

(4,098,581.95

(136,710,620.99

(1,463,941.37)
(6,591.24)
(2,537,126.12)
(45,703.93)
(7,746,885.46)

(11,800,248.12)

160,680.23
6,001,581.10
10,852,979.05

17,015,240.38

(25,244,036.21)
(10,447,888.17)
(19,122,202.91)
(38,026,445.90)
(34,556,473.59)
(4,098,581.95)
(131,495,628.73)

73,075,031.90

84,764,596.84

11,800,248.12
10,106,501.50

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company was collateralized by land and building from head office which
have the net book value in amount of Baht 45.01 million and Baht 46.45 million respectively were mortgaged as collateral
against credit from commercial bank as in Note 14 and 16.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had assets with the depreciation fully calculated but still in use
which had a cost value in amount of Baht 81.26 million and Baht 87.05 million respectively. The net book value of which
was now in amount of Baht 1,256.46 and Baht 1,045.20 respectively.

12. Intangible Assets-Net

Consist of:

Balance
As of
December 31,
2010

Purchase

Balance
As of
December 31,

2009

Baht Baht

Application Program - 270,412.54 - 270,412.54
Less Accumulated Amortized - (19,262.26) - (19,262.26)
Net - 251,150.28
Amortization in the Statements of Income
Forthe years ended on December 31, 2010 19,262.26
Forthe years ended on December 31, 2009 -
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13. Other Non-Current Assets-Net

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Baht Baht
Withholding Income Tax 5,507,055.93 5,507,055.93
Land Deposit 21,300,000.00 20,202,400.00
Other Deposits and Guarantee 3,437,816.47 5,060,122.71
Deferred Expenses - 765,050.00
Total 30,244,872.40 31,534,628.64
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt-Withholding Income Tax (5,507,055.93) (5,507,055.93)
Net 24,737,816.47 26,027,572.71

14. Credit Facilities and Guarantee
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has credits in letter of guarantee in amount of Baht 914.70 million
and Baht 839.70 million respectively, credits in from of the promissory note in amount of Baht 124.00 million and Baht 89.00
million respectively, credits in form of bank overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00 million equally for two periods and credits in
long term loans in amount of Baht 1,027.86 million and Baht 1,035.18 million respectively, the Company was collateralized
by land and construction as in Note 8 and Note 11 and land of related company in amount of Baht 2.70 million were
mortgaged as collateral against.

15. Estimate Accrued for Construction Free of Utilities of Project

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Estimate Accrued for Construction Free of Utilities of Project 111,383,790.51 46,639,701.26
Estimate Accrued for Maintain the Utilities of Project 62,452,824.34 54,989,370.75
Estimate Accrued for Construction Fee of Building Clubhouses 715,296.99 1,777,336.27
and Utilities of Project
Total 174,551,911.84 103,406,408.28

Estimate accrued for maintain the utilities of project is estimate liability for pledge to maintain the utilities of project
according to Land Allocation act B.E. 2543 by pledge with rate 7% from estimate for construction fee of utilities of project.
That liability the Company will pay to Housing Juristic Person to spend in maintain the utilities of project when Housing
Juristic Person was found according to Land Allocation act B.E. 2543.

16. Long-term Loans-Net

Consist of:
As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Long - term Loans 514,200,000.00 500,301,000.00
Less Current Portion of Long - Term Loans (11,000,000.00) (201,000.00)
Long - term Loans-Net 503,200,000.00 500,100,000.00

For the years ended on December 31, 2010, long-term loans have movement as follows:

Balance as of In the period Balance as of
December 31, December 31,
2009 Increase Decrease 2010
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Long - term Loans 500,301,000.00 65,000,000.00 (51,101,000.00) 514,200,000.00
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For the year ended on December 31, 2009, long-term loans have movement as follows:

Balance as of In the period Balance as of
December 31, December 31,

2008 Increase Decrease 2009

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Long - term Loans 150,401,000.00 350,000,000.00 (100,000.00) 500,301,000.00

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term loans partly in amount of Baht 14.20 million and Baht 0.30 million
respectively, intended to acquire land was loan from two commercial bank with the term of principle repayment when there
is any redemption of mortgaged collateral of land plus property at the rate of Baht 0.60-1.45 million per unit. It is determined
to be completely repayable within 36-50 months and 36-52 months respectively at the interest rate of MLR- (0.75 to 1.25)
per annum and MLR- (0.50 to 1.00) per annum respectively.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term loans partly in amount of Baht 500.00 million equally for two periods,
intended to operation was loan from one commercial bank. Term of principle repayment when determined to be completely
contract 36 months since date of sign in contract (January 17, 2008). The interest rate would be charged end of every
month in the rate constant at 5.60% per annum. However, on March 22, 2010, the Company has requested extension for
repayment in amount of Baht 300.00 million and Baht 200.00 million to January 17, 2013 and November 30, 2013 respectively.

The Company was collateralized by land and construction as in Note 8 and Note 11 and land of related company in
amount of Baht 2.70 million were mortgaged as collateral against.

17. Share Capital

Consist of:
Value For the Years ended on For the Years ended on
Per December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Shares Amount Value Amount Value
Baht Share Baht Share Baht
Authorized Share Capital
- Beginning Ordinary Share 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
- Ending Ordinary Share 1.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00 925,000,000 925,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital
- Beginning Ordinary Share 1.00 825,000,000 825,000,000.00 825,000,000 825,000,000.00
- Ending Ordinary Share 1.00 825,000,000 825,000,000.00 825,000,000 825,000,000.00

18. Payment for Dividends

In accordance with the unanimous of the Board of Directors Meeting held on August 11, 2010, it was resolved to pay
a dividend of Baht 0.09 per share from the company’s performance in before half year (on January 1, 2010 to June 30,
2010) total 824.40 million shares and totaling Baht 74.196 million to be paid within on September 10, 2010.

In accordance with the Minutes of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2010, held on April 28, 2010,
unanimously resolved to approve a full year 2009 to pay dividend of Baht 0.095 per share from the company’s performance
in after half year (on July 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009) total 824.40 million shares and totaling Baht 78.318 million to be
paid within on May 21, 2010.

In accordance with the unanimous of the Board of Directors Meeting held on August 13, 2009, it was resolved to pay
a dividend of Baht 0.04 per share from the company’s performance in before half year (on January 1, 2009 to June 30,
2009) total 825.00 million shares and totaling Baht 33.00 million to be paid within on September 4, 2009.

In accordance with the Minutes of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2009, held on April 24,
2009, it was resolved to pay a dividend of Baht 0.045 per share from the company’s performance in after half year (on July
1, 2008 to December 31, 2008) total 825.00 million shares and totaling Baht 37.125 million to be paid within on May 22,
2009.

19. Legal Reserve
In accordance with the Public Co., Ltd. Act B.E. 2535, the Company has to appropriate partly annual net profit as
legal reserve not less than 5 percents of the annual net profit deducted by accumulated loss brought forward (if any) until
this legal reserve holds an amount not less than 10 percents of the Company ,s registered share capital.
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20. Management Benefit Expenses

Management benefit expenses represent the benefits paid to the Company’s management and directors such as
salaries, related benefit and directors’ remuneration, including the benefit paid by other means. The Company’s management
is the persons who are defined under the Securities and Exchange Act.

21. Financial Expenses

Consist of:

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Fee Bank Expenses 44,515.00 335,650.64
Interest Expenses 20,722,877.08 15,862,221.82
Total 20,767,392.08 16,197,872.46

22. Corporate Income tax

23

24

25

For the years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company calculates corporate income tax at 25%, which
complies with royal decree No.475 to reduce corporate income tax from 30% to 25% of net profit not over Baht 300 million
for the 3 consecutively accounting periods commenced from the first accounting period which commenced within or after
January 1, 2008, for the listed companies according to the law of securities and securities market. The Company computed
corporate income tax of accounting net profit after adding adjusted transaction in accordance with the Revenue Code
which is mainly in respect of deferred revenue and part of vehicles depreciation higher Baht 1.00 million, etc.

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the period by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be
issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary Shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion
took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.

For the years ended on December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has not showed diluted earnings per share
because the calculated diluted earnings per share have effect increase earnings per share.

Woarrants (ESOP)

The Company issued warrants to directors management and employees of the Company (ESOP) in number of
15,000,000 units in the offered price of Baht 0 for the life of 3 years, 1 unit of warrants can be exercised to purchase 1
ordinary share in the price of Baht 2.91 per share. The rights can be exercised used every 6 month and every 15th of
June and December. From the first exercise date on December 15, 2009 and expired on the exercise date June 1, 2012.
Currently, such warrant still has not been exercise.

Expenses by nature
Consist of:

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Baht Baht
Change in Finished Goods and Work in Development (540,932,117.90) (115,158,371.55)
Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses 1,518,638,255.50 822,326,822.76
Employees Expense 102,677,654.89 90,992,949.18
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 11,819,510.38 10,106,501.50
Other Expense 150,274,692.54 84,516,296.14
Total 1,242,477,995.41 892,784,198.03

26. Presentation of Financial Data Segregated by Business Sector

The Company operates in only one main sector, namely business of property development for sales and its
operation is in one geographical area, which is Thailand. Thus all income and assets as shown on the financial statements
were related to the business sector and geographical area as already said. 106
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27. Disclosure and Presentation of Financial Instruments
27.1 Policies of Financial Risk Management
The Company is not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
27.2 Risks on Interest Rates
Risk on interest rates is derived from fluctuation of market interest rate in the future which affect upon operating

result and cash flow. The Company had assets and liabilities which it may have risk on interest rate as follows:

Amount Annual Interest Rate

31 December, 31 December, 31 December, 31 December,

2010 2009 2010 2009

Million Baht Million Baht % %

Bank Overdrafts 4.27 9.41 MOR MOR

Long-term Loans from Finan- 514.20 500.30 MLR - MLR -
cial Institutes (0.75t0 1.25), (0.50 to 1.00),

5.60 5.60

27.3 Risk on Exchange Rate
The Company is not exposed to any risk from foreign exchange rate fluctuations because its main enterprise
in conducted locally.
27.4 Risk on Credit Provision
The Company faces risk from extending credit to customers who default on payment however the Company
evaluate each client’s ability to pay before giving credit and make a sufficient provision for doubtful debts in
accordance with accounting policy and the Company’s management believe that adequate.
27.5 Fair Value
The Company required the follow-up of the financial assets and liabilities for every accounting period to find
out as to whether the book value is materially different from the fair value. From such policy, the Company believes
that the book value of the financial assets and liabilities will not materially different from fair value.

28. Obligation Commitment to Complete Projects on Hand
As of December 31, 2010  As of December 31, 2009

Number of Projects on Hand at Beginning of Period 24 22
Number of Projects Closed - (1)
Number of New Projects 4 3
Number of Projects on Hand at End of Period 28 24
Accumulative Value of Sales Already Contracted (Million Baht) 18,441.50 16,787.00
As Percentage of Total Sales of Projects on Hand 78.75% 82.88%

For the Years ended on

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Value of Sales Already Contracted During the Period (Mil- 1,654.50 1,357.07
lion Baht)
As Percentage of Total Sales of Projects on Hand 7.09% 6.70%

The Company is obliged to develop the project on behalf of the central utility and obligation commitment which
required the construction in accordance with the contract of project construction as follows:

As of December 31, 2010  As of December 31, 2009

Million Baht Million Baht
Development of Central Utility of Various Project 162.92 82.21
The Construction with the Contract of Various Project 128.78 109.05
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29. Obligation Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

29.1 Obligations and contingent liabilities with commercial banks

Apart from liabilities shown on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company still have
other obligations and contingent liabilities with banks as follows:

As of As of
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Million Baht Million Baht

Letter of Guarantee 180.53 105.64

29.2 Purchasing and selling contract or deposit contract
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company have purchasing and selling contract or deposit contract
of land. The Company will have to repay the outstanding amount of Baht 107.47 million and Baht 200.02 million
respectively.
29.3 Obligation commitment from guarantee against merchandise acquisition
As of December 31, 2010, the Company constitutes obligation commitment from issuing promissory notes in
order to guarantee against construction material acquisition in number of two versions in total value of Baht 11.60
millions whereas both versions of promissory notes will mature for repayment on March 30, 2011.

30. Other Information

Due to the problem of deteriorated land of Narintong Village located at Lumlukka Moo 2, Coukot District, Patumtanee
Province which is the old project of the Company in the past that allotted not less than 17 years. Presently, the Patumtanee
Province has appointed working team of fact examination and consumers protection in order to receive fairness as Office
of the Consumer Protection Board, The Prime Minister's Office assigned. The problem derives from subsided soil resulting
from such project allotment village being allotted not less than 17 years under management of the former set management
board. Moreover, in the project area, the Provincial Water Authority has sunk a well in order to use for inhabitants in the
project and adjoining area for the long period while housing body and structure are in the durable condition; only car
parking area will be subsided. The working team of fact examination and consumers protection in order to receive fairness
will report the result to the Province who will in form to Office of the Consumer Protection Board, Office of the Consumer
Protection Board will notify examination result to the Company to be further acknowledged. Given the affected result on the
financial statements, the Company still cannot summarize and has to wait for fact examination result from the examination
subcommittee and provincial committee who will report the Office of the Consumer Protection Board, The Prime Minister's
Office onwards. However, the responsibility to housing structure in accordance with Consumer Protection Law (standard
contract of Office of Consumer Protection Board), the Company has obligated to the structure damage within 5 years, in
this case the houses are completed not less than 17 years, so it has to follow-up the result of Consumer Protection Board
considering which will be informed. Other projects of the Company that completely developed do not have problem similarly
as such project. From above event, presently, it still has not been prosecuted to claim for any damage fee.

31. Capital Management
The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, debt to equity ratio in the financial statements are 0.22 : 1 and 0.21 : 1
respectively.

32. Approval of the Financial Statements
These financial statements have been approved to issued by the Company’s directors on February 21, 2011.
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